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Financial Highlights

E4 HEZ12A31BLLEE
Results Year ended 31 December
20174 2016%F @
2017 2016 Change
ARETFRT AREBTFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
WA Revenue 160,584 112,284 43.0%
D] Operating profit 38,516 14,283 169.7%
FRE A% Income tax (expense)/credit (7,200) 12,748  (156.5)%
F R A HE Profit for the year 33,455 28,608 16.9%
FRART R EEN Earnings per share attributable
BREF (AF K& to shareholders of the Company
AR TIIR) for the year (expressed in RMB
per share)
— ERREE — Basic and diluted 0.26 0.22 18.2%
B RSk R ”12A318
Financial position As at 31 December
20174 2016%F @
2017 2016 Change
ARETFRXT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
wWEE Total assets 740,347 636,191 16.4%
MBEEFE Net current assets 424,797 367,320 15.6%
BWEERREBAERE Total assets less current liabilities 590,131 563,076 4.8%
wEE Total liabilities 150,216 73,115 105.5%
4R 2R Total equity 590,131 563,076 4.8%
M B ER ®12A31H
Financial statistics As at 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
i B b & Current ratio’ 3.8 6.0
B &t &2 Gearing ratio? - —
FER#ERERA)? Inventory turnover days (days)® 210.5 149.3
B REWRIBEBRAEAS(R) Trade receivables turnover days (days)* 388.1 632.1
EoRENFRERABRE(A)S Trade payables turnover days (days)® 66.1 421
1. RBLEREERNRBEERUTRSD AR 1. Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities
2. BELEESREERERNEER BRI 2. Gearing ratio = total borrowings/total equity x 100%
100%

3. GERAEASEENETEEBRBRUTRAKA - B 3.
FELAB65H

Inventory turnover days = inventory balance/revenue for the year x 365 days

4. BAZENFRESEIGEENE S EKFORE % 4.
BRAF AU A - B R LAB65H

Trade receivables turnover days = trade receivables balance/revenue for the
year x 365 days

5. BSENFRAEABEENESENFIREH 5.
BRIAFE R KA - 3k IA365H

Trade payables turnover days = trade payables balance/revenue for the year x
365 days

4 EHER N ER KM AR 2 E WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Chairman’s Statement

AANEREXES(EE)E(EFEE
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B REMERR (REFRE] L &N
BDEZ2017F12A3H L FE(E£EAD
LIEEZFERSE -

20174 » PRI ENHG RSB IENER
IR EBEBEL  BHBBRMmER
7t BREBERPALS - HRBEH - KX
BN BAMENNEHER - REM 1
FEMAREERRER  BRT FRE
R 2R TIRPLRBINZRE - 25
2F WR1TXVBESKEEN  #ENR
el r - HFEEENRER] - PR L
XEZRENEBHMARE  BRRRE - R M
HBIZUKS) - BEFUR  HZE=HR
AR - BWEARET TR - REEE
Mmss  BHmY ks - HEHTER
HREREROBE -

EBORE

CIEE20174F - 2IRQBEEEEEES - &
ERERER  BRARAN - THXH
KEEEREDRY  BMTELHEERN
= REKEARIETE  BIRENMA
AAGEERMEE - TEAMSEERER
BIEREIR - ENERAEEEIES o

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”), | am pleased to present the audited annual report
of M NERFERMABMRAR Wuxi Sunlit Science and
Technology Company Limited* (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group” or “Sunlit”) for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year”).

In 2017, the economy of China placed focus on the supply-side
structural reform in order to advance structural optimisation,
shift in forces and quality upgrade. As a result, the national
economy was stable with improvements and was better than
expected. Economic vitality, mobility and potential
continuously unleashed with significant enhancement in stability,
coordination and sustainability. The economy has achieved
stable and healthy development and maintained a steady
growth. Looking back to the Year, the tire industry experienced
ups and downs but opportunities and risks did co-exist. Most of
the Chinese tire enterprises reacted passively to the overall
price hike, restrictions placed by the environmental protection
requirements and the fluctuations in raw material prices. A

was

series of dramatic events last year also shocked the whole
industry. On the other hand, the Group seized market
opportunities by making proactive efforts in overcoming the
challenges and thus facilitated the rapid growth in the gross
profit of our Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back to 2017, the global economy continued to recover
and the economy sustained its growth. Besides, the overall
inflation was moderate. In recent years, the economy of the US
saw a strong recovery while the economy of the Euro Zone
achieved continuous improvement. The overall economy of the
UK was stable with rising inflation pressure, and Japan made a
recovery in its economy. The emerging market
economies experienced faster growth but were still subject to
adjustment and transformation pressure.

moderate
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Chairman’s Statement

¥BEE®

FAH AL RA TR - FHfE OISR
B2% 2B HOMEFRBFFE 2
BRE  BRBINEHOLRE B1% - H
EEEZIKMEHMBESET BEBERBSWBE
EFMNRES GRtC¥XEHEXEY
Mt FTETEMNREERE - BBEHBRE D

M8 IR PR - (EBERE TEHEM
HEOREERE-—AGREOR - X8

REBE@mE EXRNBERTS Lo &
HEANE  NEBEHEHEL FFREIE
R743% * FREN LT166.8%E AR
54,921,0007T * AN £ B 20179 % A B 815
A R #533,455,0007C °

EEe2FRBEFAZREREFHRA
R #0.057T °

20174 - Zli’ilﬁﬁiﬁﬁth Eﬁlﬁglﬁﬁﬁ
EBERFEEENEKE  Be Rk
%?LTE% ’E%T?ﬂ@ﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁxﬂk/ﬁ

EBER

20184 - [ 44 (B2 1) 5 =2 P Hb 45 V75 IR
ROER  HERKGBEL R - EheE
EEBEREERBLE  ARBFER
WRAKZEHRSERDE - Bt - £B K
MR EEIFEERREHERBRFE
EHERERT - .%Eﬁ%ﬂ@}?ﬁ%’%iﬁﬂ%’%
BEEENAL  HRANEAE EF€
HEBZRENSMBLEBREE -

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The growth in export throughout the Year was slowed down.
The growth rate of the export of half-steel tires was 2% while
that of the export of all-steel tires remained flat as compared to
the same period last year. In general, the growth rate of rubber
tire export was only 1%. Against the backdrop of economic
globalisation, with enhancement in the tire production technology
in China, industrial transfer of leading tire enterprises and rapid
and fierce development of the world’s automobile industry, the
export volume of tires from China continued to grow, albeit at a
lower rate. Therefore, China remains the world’s largest country
of export for tire. Benefited from the position the Chinese tire
enterprises enjoy in the international market and the supply-side
reform, sales of the Group increased by 43% over the same
period last year while the gross profit for the Year increased by
66.8% to RMB54,921,000. The Group recorded net profit of
RMB33,455,000 in 2017.

The Board proposes to pay a final dividend of RMB0.05 per
share for the Year.

In 2017, as the Group did not have any borrowings, its gearing
ratio continued to be low and cash flow remained in a good
condition, maintaining a stable financial condition.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

In 2018, “supply side reform” will continue to be the focus of
national economic policy and gradually be
deepened. Among the reforms, the first priority will go to
revitalising the real economy and eliminating overcapacity while
improving product quality. Therefore, the Group will enhance its
products’ competitiveness by means of technological and quality
innovation. Under the new norm, the government encourages
the transformation and upgrade of traditional manufacturing to
intelligent manufacturing, and emphasises quality improvement.
The Board remains optimistic about the long-term prospect of
the Group.

reforms  will

6 FEHRDNENERHER 2T WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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PROSPECTS

2018 marks the start of the 19th National Congress of the
Communist Party of China and the 40th anniversary of the
Chinese economic reform. It is also a critical year to secure a
decisive victory in building a moderately prosperous society in
all respects and carry on the “13th Five-Year” Plan. The macro
policy in 2018 will further guide the focus of growth to change
from demand-side to supply-side,
innovation-driven and from acceleration of total volume to
people’s welfare, and strive to cultivate a room for the economy
of China to rebound over the long term.

from factor-driven to

Vehicle ownership in China is huge and there is still enormous
room for growth in subsequent vyears, thus replacement
demand will have tremendous growth. According to the growth
pattern of overseas automobile markets,
wearing of tires and advancement in technologies, replacement
demand for tires will increase significantly after years of surge in
production and sales of automobiles. Therefore, in the next
several years, tire replacement market will see fast growth. This
will undoubtedly up the ante in the tire replacement market.

with continuous
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express my gratitude to our shareholders, business partners,
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Zhang Degang
Chairman of the Board
Jiangsu, China
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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M AR A AR AR =R T
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BIEFRBETETEHE ((RRIHDER -
20174 & F )7 B = §§2901.5 58 #i f12887.9
B [/t Rl K3.2% M3% ° &
2016%F14.5% F113.7% &) & & & - & A
1I7TFEMEERMIER - B2 - KFH
RERAEERSERSY - EHHYIEIAS0
B BERTERN - BEMIZEIER - F
AR - 2017 B EfTE EER —E &
Bh XBENEIRERINTZE K
FREmi5E20165F HIRRAIE S - 20174
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R B K RN 2017F ¥15% B TE & - B 2
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T AEEBRGELCABRLCERR Bt
BB EAIES] - EAREENKEERT
BPBE  EPRTHERE -

FR - AEEBREEER2016FRAFRE
ERE CAEEFAKRAL EFRHHEE
T43% » FREF L F66.8% = A R
54,921,0007T + AL B2017F FH H 5
A R #33,455,0007C °

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2017, the economy of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC” or “China”) placed focus on the supply-side structural
reform in order to advance structural optimisation, shift in forces
and quality upgrade. As a result, the stability, coordination and
sustainability of the national economy were significantly
enhanced and the economy maintained a steady growth.
Nevertheless, the tire industry experienced ups and downs and
opportunities and risks did co-exist. Bringing innovation to tire
technology and quality is in the offing.

According to the data from China Association of Automobile
Manufacturers (“CAAM”), production and sale of automobiles in
China in 2017 amounted to 29,015,000 vehicles and 28,879,000
vehicles, representing a year-on-year (“YoY”) increase of 3.2%
and 3% as compared to the growth rate of 14.5% and 13.7%
in 2016, respectively. Despite the slight growth in the
automobile market in 2017, the new energy automobile sector
showed strong development momentum last year with
production and sale of nearly 800,000 vehicles, resulting in
increases in both domestic and international markets. CAAM
indicated that China’s automobile industry was under certain
pressure in 2017. Due to the reduction in preferential purchase
tax, the passenger car market has utilised the demand ahead of
time in 2016, leading to a significant slowdown in production
and sales growth of passenger cars in 2017, the slowest growth
since 2008. On the other hand, the adjustment to the new
energy automobile policy has exerted certain influence on the
sale in the second half of the Year. In light of the operation of
the automobile industry throughout the Year, growth in
production and sales was slightly lower than the expectation of
5% in early 2017, but growth was still recorded in 2017 on the
basis of the high base in 2016. As a result, the overall economy
of the industry was progressing steadily, showing a trend of
stable improvement. Driven by the favorable market
environment, the Group proactively optimised and adjusted its
operation strategy while strengthening the risk prevention and
control, so as to remain stable and improve operation and
achieve a satisfactory development.

During the Year, the Group’s overall performance showed a
significant growth as compared to 2016. Revenue of the Group
increased by 43% during the Year as compared to the same
period of last year and gross profit for the Year increased by
66.8% to RMB54,921,000. The Group recorded a net profit of
RMBS33,455,000 in 2017.

8 FEHRDNENERHER 2T WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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B %5 B B FINANCIAL REVIEW
A Revenue
HE12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December
201745 20164
2017 2016
Unit(s) sold RMB’000 %  Unit(s) sold RMB’000 %
EHEE ARETR % EHEE AR®ETT %
EESMMMEELR Brass electroplating wire production lines 2 21,265 13.2 5 59,447 53.0
Hfh £ ER Other production lines 4 20,355 12.7 7 11,363 10.1
O Standalone machineries 576 94,974 59.1 83 10,982 9.8
EHERE - TE4N Mould repairing equipment, component
B 14 parts and accessories AERAN/A 21,603 13.5  TEANA 28,439 25.3
e A Rental income ERAN/A 2,387 1.5  TEANA 2,053 1.8
160,584 100.0 112,284 100.0

RNEBTFHRADAEARE
160,600,0007T © #20164F 4 A R ¥
112,300,000 3 1149 A R #548,300,0007T
(8 4943.0%) T2 RAR T HITEREERER
MEHEREER -

EZFOUTEFHHERANBARE
21,300,0007T © #&2016%F % A R #
59,400,0007T J& > £164.2% ° 720174 -
BERERMMBEESETPEWN -
MR2016F I G ELXERETPEMN -
ZREFEHRMSENELEESNT
OB A B8 »

H 4 EAR o H A EFR2017F 8 84
B AL E A RE20,400,0007T © #2016
F4 AR ¥E11,400,0007T 1 H14)79.1% » £
ERRNIREMEEIFNEMNEER
EELH -

B o BRRO2OI7TENHEERANAEAR
#£95,000,0007T © #K20164F 4 A R ¥
11,000,000 T N4 764.8% » &R E #
HE FF - MBS E#EEHR2016F K
83E K18 h1 E2017F K576 E -

Our revenue increased by approximately RMB48.3 million or
approximately 43.0% to approximately RMB160.6 million for
2017 from approximately RMB112.3 million for 2016. The
increase is mainly due to the expansion in downstream industry
and growth in market demand.

Brass electroplating wire production lines. Revenue from sale of
brass electroplating wire production lines decreased by
approximately 64.2% to approximately RMB21.3 million for 2017
from approximately RMB59.4 million for 2016. 2 sets of brass
electroplating wire production lines were accepted by the
in 2017 while 5 sets were accepted by the
customers in 2016. The decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in market demand for the completed set of production
lines.

customers

Other production lines. Revenue from sale of other production
lines increased by approximately 79.1% to approximately
RMB20.4 million for 2017 from approximately RMB11.4 million
for 2016. The increase was mainly due to the increase in the
sale price of other production lines with the complicated
manufacturing process.

Revenue from sale of standalone
increased by approximately 764.8% to
approximately RMB95.0 million for 2017 from approximately
RMB11.0 million for 2016. The increase was due to the increase
in sale quantity in the standalone machineries, with the number
of standalone machineries being sold increase largely from 83
sets in 2016 to 576 sets in 2017.

Standalone machineries.
machineries

—Z -t FE#HRE ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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#500,0007T * F EHR B BIGET R
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HEHZ
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4,300,0007C I8 IN4)12.8% E2017TEH AR
#4,900,0007T * = Z R 1 &8 & F 218 0
BT8R -

TB %
BT R H2016F AR
19,900,0007T & & E2017F 49 A R ¥
17,100,000 * T EZHRKE AR EE T EH S
T E R IEEKE RS ERERSE
WRIE + (F2017F 115 FE W SR TB R (B B 1
B B F %8 4 A R ¥9,600,0007T © i H
20164 1 H /Y & 4R 3k T8 Ul (B %% 1 B 0%
B # A AR #6,200,0007T °

1 5@ E2 9 47 Management Discussion and Analysis

Mould repairing equipment, component parts, and accessories.
Revenue from sale of mould repairing equipment, component
parts, and accessories decreased by approximately 24.0% to
approximately RMB21.6 million for 2017 from approximately
RMB28.4 million for 2016. The decrease was primarily due to
the decrease in equipment modification services provided to
customers.

Rental income. Revenue from rental income arose from the
Group’s investment properties, which were rented to third
parties in 2017 and 2016. As more properties had been rented
out during 2017, the rental income has increased.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit increased by approximately 66.8% from
approximately RMB32.9 million for 2016 to approximately
RMB54.9 million for 2017. Our overall gross profit margin
increased from approximately 29.3% for 2016 to approximately
34.2% for 2017, mainly due to the increase in gross profit
margin of standalone machineries, with a higher proportion in
the sales mix.

Other income

Our other income decreased by approximately 721% from
approximately RMB1.9 million for 2016 to approximately RMBO0.5
million for 2017, primarily due to less value-added tax refunds
received.

Selling expenses

Our selling expenses increased by approximately 12.8% from
approximately RMB4.3 million for 2016 to approximately RMB4.9
million for 2017, primarily due to the increase in transportation
expenses.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses decreased from approximately
RMB19.9 million for 2016 to approximately RMB17.1 million for
2017. This is primarily because there was a net reversal of
allowance for impairment of receivables of approximately
RMB9.6 million during 2017 resulting from collection of some
impaired trade receivables after the continuous effort of the
Group to collect the receivables while a net reversal of
allowance for impairment of receivables of approximately
RMB6.2 million was made during 2016.

1 O FEHRDNENERHER 2T WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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1% B2 947 Management Discussion and Analysis

Other gains — net

The Group recorded net other gains of approximately RMB5.1
million in 2017, compared with the net other gains of
approximately RMB3.7 million in 2016. Other gains mainly
included the gains on disposal of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and unrealised fair value gains on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Finance income — net

The Group recorded a net finance income of approximately
RMB2.1 million in 2017, compared with the net finance income
of approximately RMB1.6 million
finance income was mainly due to the amortisation of unearned
financial income.

in 2016. The increase in

Income tax expense/(credit)

The Group recorded income tax expense of approximately
RMB7.2 million for 2017, compared with the credit to income tax
expense of approximately RMB12.7 million for 2016. The Group
recognised the deferred income tax assets only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Trade receivables

Our gross trade receivables decreased by approximately 12.2%
from approximately RMB194.4 million as at 31 December 2016
to approximately RMB170.7 million as at 31 December 2017.
The decrease was primarily due to the adoption of more
stringent collection policy over the customers and the increase
of repayment ability of our customers resulting from the
extension in downstream industries. Meanwhile, the Group
collected approximately RMB18.9 million impaired trade
receivables during 2017, and the allowance for trade receivables
decreased from approximately RMB87.3 million at the end of
2016 to approximately RMB72.5 million at the end of 2017.

Inventories

Our inventories increased by approximately 101.7% from
approximately RMB45.9 million at the end of 2016 to
approximately RMB92.6 million at the end of 2017, mainly
because the Group signed certain sale contracts in the second
half of 2017, and most of them were still in the stage of
manufacturing or installation at the year end of 2017.
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Trade payables

Our trade payables increased by approximately 124.7% from
approximately RMB13.0 million at the end of 2016 to
approximately RMB29.1 million at the end of 2017, primarily due
to an increase in our purchase of raw materials during the Year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Cash position and fund available

During the Year, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity
position, with working capital being financed by our operating
cash flows.

As at 31 December 2017, the total cash and bank balances of
the Group were approximately RMB227.5 million (31 December
2016: approximately RMB206.7 million), comprising cash and
cash equivalents of approximately RMB71.9 million (31
December 2016: approximately RMB193.6 million), restricted
cash of approximately RMB49.8 million (31 December 2016:
approximately RMB13.1 million) and time deposits of
approximately RMB105.8 million (31 December 2016: Nil).

As at 31 December 2017, the current ratio of the Group was
3.8 (31 December 2016: 6.0). The decrease was mainly due to
the increase of trade and other payables and advances from
customers.

The gearing ratio of the Group (calculated as total borrowings
divided by total equity) was zero (31 December 2016: zero).

The Group was in a strong net cash position as at 31
December 2017 and 2016. The Group has sufficient and readily
available finance resources for general working capital
requirement and foreseeable capital expenditure.

Borrowings
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no borrowings (31
December 2016: Nil).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

In 2017, the Group’s capital expenditures amounted to
approximately RMB2.1 million (2016: approximately RMB11.3
million) which was related to the construction of buildings of
approximately RMB1.0 million and the purchase of machineries
and equipments of approximately RMB1.1 million.

1 2 EHER N ER KM AR 2 E WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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1% B2 947 Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group
during the Year. The capital of the Group only comprises
ordinary shares.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Foreign exchange risk arises when transaction or recognised
assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the
entity’s functional currency.

The Group operates in the PRC with most of its transactions
denominated and settled in RMB. The Group’s assets and
liabilities, and transactions arising from its operations do not
expose the Group to material foreign exchange risk as the
Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2017 were
denominated in the respective Group companies’ functional
currencies.

During the Year, the Group did not use any financial instruments
for hedging purposes. The management will continue to monitor
foreign currency risk and adopt prudent measures as and when
appropriate.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The Company’s H shares have been listed (the “Listing”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 11 November 2014 (the “Listing Date”). The
net proceeds from the Listing after
underwriting commissions, fees and listing-related expenses
amounted to approximately HK$209.5 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB165.3 million).

the deduction of

With a view to improve efficiency in the use of the Company’s
temporary idle raised proceeds,
construction of the committed projects and planned usage of the
proceeds for such construction will not be affected, the Board has
proposed to utilise part of the temporary idle raised proceeds to
purchase wealth management products in order to increase the
capital revenue, improve the efficiency and effectiveness in the use
of the Company’s temporary idle raised proceeds, which in turn
shall further enhance the overall revenue of the Company and
pursue better investment return to the Company and the
shareholders as a whole. For more details regarding the change
of use of net proceeds from the Listing, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 29 March 2016.

on the condition that the
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1 5@ E2 9 47 Management Discussion and Analysis

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 9 June
2017, the Board was authorised, within one year commencing
from the approval, to exercise the decision-making power
regarding purchase of wealth management products by utilising
temporary idle proceeds for not more than RMB35 million in
aggregate at any time. Since the authority granted to the Board
to purchase wealth management products with the temporary
idle proceeds will expire one year after such approval, a special
resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to renew such authority. For details of
the grant of such authorities, please refer to the circular of the
Company dated 21 April 2017.

Together with the income to be generated from the wealth
management products, the Company will continue apply the net
proceeds from the Listing for the construction of the New Wuxi
Facility and its new research & development centre to be
established in the New Wuxi Facility (the “New Research &
Development Centre”) as stated in the prospectus of the
Company dated 30 October 2014 (the “Prospectus”).

Up to 31 December 2017, out of the net proceeds from the
Listing, the Group used approximately HK$92.9 million, HK$13.6
million and HK$21.0 million for (i) funding the construction of the
New Wuxi Facility and the New Research & Development
Centre; (i) developing certain targeted research and
development projects; and (iii) general working capital and other
general corporate purposes, respectively. In addition, the Group
utilised a part of the proceeds for purchasing wealth
management products, which amounted to approximately
HK$31.2 million as at 31 December 2017. As at 31 December
2017, the unused proceeds of approximately HK$55.3 million,
including net proceeds of HK$50.8 million and interest of net
proceeds of HK$4.5 million, were deposited in licensed banks in
the PRC.

1 4 FEHRDNENERHER 2T WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED



il
il

- 3
2018 R EE R A G M BIE - BR
AEBMUKBEKBIEN—F mHHE
%ﬁﬁ%Z%@%%ﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ“'?
RITER O - R ETEERBR
BRIM—WEREZEEE  BOAES MERE
E o BHEFAEBERLHL - 20185
hEft AR EEBE R BERKITE
2018 F th i A BIR 1B &% + LLIM R IRTT
ENEPUROLTED TERERRRMAN
FR BNEARKRET  BEHBRES
W%L°ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%T—“Wﬁ¢ﬁ?%
BRTRRIFEERASBENERS
B AEBEIFRIUREMEER - BinAHE
mﬁ%'%éﬁﬁﬁﬁATﬁﬁm@%
AT REEDENMRERTST - TER
FARBRHTENER WHREEER
BT AERS T FRAGREER °
SN BB R HIEIT S - R MIE

RREMBHER  MEAKENRHA
ii“’“i‘ﬁ)&%%lj €N o AR - MIGKENR]
REE S HIRB AL - BRENERE

Zli'ili%ﬁmiﬂﬂ%ﬁkﬂﬂ#ﬁlﬁt 7

RBIE TR R U EELEE
BREROFE - R AEESE—FEE
FLEANIEFPHIE  TMERFRFPE
M5 )RG5 A SR AR 5t i 4k
MR BREANERTEHBENER
FEMRE -

# E 5t W B2 9 #7 Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS

In 2018, the growth of the automobile industry will continue to
slow down, and 2018 will be a year full of challenges and
opportunities. After the market downturn, only the fittest could
survive and the tire industry has started to recover in a gradual
manner. Through consistent and precise management, cost
control and Sunlit’s management
successfully maintained the leading position of the Group. In
2018, China’s supply-side reform will gradually deepen, and it
believed that the automobile industry will continue to recover. In
addition, the boom in the photovoltaic industry also drove the
demand for electroplated brass wire. In such circumstances,
Sunlit will be presented with more opportunities. The
management expected that in the coming financial year, the
Group’s business will continue to grow steadily and its scale will
continue to expand. The Group is taking a strategic approach,
which involves strengthening technological development, and
training technological management and technological innovation
personnel. The Group has stepped up the expansion of its
production capacity and the construction of new plants with an
aim to satisfy the growing number of orders. The Group has
also upgraded its existing production lines in order to improve
the production capacity of radial tire cord. In addition, the
Group will actively explore overseas markets and maintain and
expand its existing market share, so as to restore the Group’s
long-term sustainable growth and profitability. Although market
volatility may lead to short-term uncertainty in performance,
Sunlit is confident that it prepared for further
breakthroughs when the market matures and is committed to
maintaining the interests of the Group’s shareholders.
Meanwhile, the Group will be further supported by more
domestic and overseas customers, allowing it to not only
maintain a leading position in the domestic market, but also
move forward to realise the goals of becoming a global leading
producer of steel cord products and equipment and achieving
better performance.

lean manufacturing,

is well
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1 5@ E2 9 47 Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a total of 147
full-time employees (2016: 132), including administration, finance,
internal audit, research and development, technical application,
quality control, manufacturing, procurement, sales and
marketing staff. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group’s total employee remuneration was approximately
RMB17.6 million (2016: approximately RMB15.3 million).

The Group places great emphasis on recruiting and training
quality personnel by providing orientation programs to the new
employees and on-going internal training to the existing
employees to enhance their industry, technical and product
knowledge, their work ethics as well as their knowledge of
industry quality standards and work safety standards.
Furthermore, the Group encourages its employees to take
advanced courses and obtain professional certifications.

The Group is confident that its employees will continue to
provide a solid foundation for the success of the Group and will
maintain a high standard of service to our customers.

The Group has not experienced any disruption of its normal
business operations due to labour disputes or significant
turnover of staff. The Directors consider that the Group has
maintained a very good relationship with its staff.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (31 December 2016: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save and except for the wealth management products as
disclosed under paragraph headed “Discloseable Transactions in
relation to Subscription of Wealth Management Product” of this
report, the Group had no significant investments held during the
Year.

1 6 FEHRDNENERHER 2T WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the Year, the Group had no acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the cash deposits in the amount of
approximately RMB49.8 million (31 December 2016:
approximately RMB13.1 million) were pledged to banks as
security for notes payable and letter of guarantee for export
sales. Save for that, the Group did not have any charges on its
assets as at 31 December 2017 or 31 December 2016.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND EXPECTED SOURCE OF FUNDS

In the future, the Group will continue to implement its diversified
development strategy and proactively search for potential
investment opportunities.

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus or elsewhere in this report,
the Group had no future plans for material investments and
expected source of funds as at 31 December 2017.

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTIONS IN RELATION TO
SUBSCRIPTION OF WEALTH MANAGEMENT
PRODUCT

On 3 July 2017, the Company and F% #8717 (Ping An Bank Co.,
Ltd*) (“Ping An Bank”) entered into the wealth management
product agreement, pursuant to which the Company has agreed
to subscribe for a wealth management product of Ping An Bank
in the amount of RMB50,000,000 which was financed by the
temporary idle internal funds of the Company.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined
under the Listing Rules) in relation to the subscription exceed
5% but are below 25%, the subscription constitutes a
discloseable transaction of the Company and is subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements, but is exempt from
the circular and shareholders’ approval requirements, under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.
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On 14 July 2017, the Company and # & $E1T (China Merchants
Bank Co., Ltd.*) (“China Merchants Bank”) entered into the
wealth management product agreement, pursuant to which the
Company has agreed to subscribe for a wealth management
product of China Merchants Bank in the amount of
RMB26,000,000 which was financed by the temporary idle
proceeds of the Company raised from the Listing.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined
under the Listing Rules) in relation to the subscription exceed
5% but are below 25%, the subscription constitutes a
discloseable transaction of the Company and is subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements, but is exempt from
the circular and shareholders’ approval requirements, under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

For details of the above transactions, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 3 July 2017 and 14 July
2017, respectively.

* For identification purposes only
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Degang (R#E M), aged 45, is our executive
Director and the chairman of the Group since 24 July 2012. Mr.
Zhang is one of the founders of the Group. He is primarily
responsible for the Group’s postulating business development
plans and overseeing our Group’s overall corporate strategies.
He is also the chairman of the nomination committee and
strategic committee of the Board. Mr. Zhang Degang is the
brother of Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua.

Mr. Zhang Degang obtained a bachelor's degree in computer
science and technology (e-business) (FF& # #2817 iy (BF 75
%)) through distance learning from Nanjing University (7 &= X
£) in March 2005. In January 2013, Mr. Zhang was accredited
by FEHEBRTIHEIEZES B/ IHEMFE (Chengjiang
Road Office of the Chengjiang Road Working Committee of the
Communist Party of China*) as the “FA 2 {® ¥ X~ (Star
Entrepreneur®) for the year 2012. In April 2013, Mr. Zhang was
awarded with “#E 5 A — 4 8HE" (Wuxi City 1 May Labour
Medal*) by M4 T& (Wuxi City General Union*). Mr. Zhang
was awarded the Labour Model of Wuxi in May 2015.

From June 1990 to June 1994, Mr. Zhang Degang worked in JT
ke 8 4B B (Jiangyin Steel Wire Factory®); from June 1994 to
November 2003, Mr. Zhang worked in China Bekaert Steel
Cord Co., Ltd. (FE B <4l &G BR A7), where he gained
considerable experience in the steel wire industry. From
October 2002 to April 2004, Mr. Zhang acted as the supervisor
of I =R I AR AR Jiangyin Sanzhi Gongkong Company
Limited®) ("Jiangyin Sanzhi”), which was principally engaged in
the installation, repair and maintenance of
industrial automatic control equipment. Jianyin Sanzhi was
deregistered in December 2015. From September 2005 to July
2012, Mr. Zhang acted as the chairman, director and general
manager of )Lf& B TI2BRAR] (Jiangyin Beite Machinery
and Engineering Company Limited®), which specialised in the
sale and manufacture of industrial automatic equipment. In order
to allow Mr. Zhang to focus on the business of the Group, /L&
BER#®W ITREER-ADT (angyin Beite Machinery and
Engineering Company Limited*) was deregistered in July 2012.

modification,
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In March 2006, Mr. Zhang Degang (through his spouse, Ms.
Zhu Yingxuan) established &5 HE#K T2 B R QA
(Wuxi Sunlit Machinery & Engineering Company Limited®) (the
“Predecessor Company”) with Mr. Zhang Degiang. He has
been the director of T =AM T # M AR A Jiangyin
Sanzhi Gongkong Machinery Company Limited®) (the “Sanzhi
Gongkong”) since April 2009 and he acted as the general
manager of Sanzhi Gongkong from April 2009 to December
2011; he has also been the director and general manager
of T#RBENWEEBERFEABMRAR (iangsu Sunlit Equipment
Technology Company Limited®) (the “Jiangsu Sunlit”) since
August 2009; the general manager of %5 EE R AR A
A] (Wuxi Haisheng Software Technology Company Limited*) (the
“Haisheng Software”) since July 2011 and its director since
December 2012; and the director of #$5 FiE B &L R F AR
AF] (Wuxi Shangda Automation Technology Company Limited*)
(the “Wuxi Shangda”) since December 2011. Wuxi Shangda was
deregistered in April 2016.

Mr. ZHANG Deqiang (3R #3%), aged 48, is our executive
Director and general manager. Mr. Zhang is also one of the
founders of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the day-
to-day operations, strategic development and management of
the Group’s business. Mr. Zhang Degiang is also a member of
the remuneration and appraisal committee and strategic
committee of the Board. Mr. Zhang Degiang is the brother of
Mr. Zhang Degang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua.
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Mr. Zhang Degiang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in engineering
majoring in electronic precision machinery (& #& % ##) from
Southeast University (R AZ) in July 1991. In August 1998,
he was conferred by BT TEREMAFLELTEFWEZE
@ (Wuxi City Engineer Technology Intermediate Qualification
Socialisation Evaluation Committee*) with the qualification of
engineer. In November 2013, he was granted the qualification

WEFEEZE® (Jiangsu Wuxi Mechanical Engineering Senior
Professional Technique Qualification Evaluation Committee*) . In
January 2011, Mr. Zhang Degiang was recognised by J& i &
ANRBKT (Zhoutie Town People’s Government*) and A & &=
EFEEIEZEE (Zhoutie Town Committee of the Communist
Party of China®) as the “BA £ & (4 1£) ” (Star Factory Director
(Manager)*) for the year of 2010. He was also accredited as the
“BFEREPER” (Outstanding Non-public Entrepreneur®) for two
consecutive years of 2010 and 2011 by EHHA R BT (Wuxi

Committee of the Communist Party of China*).

From August 1991 to October 1995, Mr. Zhang Degiang worked
in BEMCEEB ARSI A7 (Haying Enterprise Group
Company Limited*), where he gained experience in designing
machinery. From October 1995 to April 2006, Mr. Zhang
worked as the department head of the production and technical
department in 51 HEF B R A F (Wuxi Murata Electronics
Company Limited*), which was principally engaged in the sale
and manufacture of electronic products and components. From
April 2004 to November 2005, he acted as the supervisor of
Jiangyin Sanzhi, which was principally engaged in the installation,
modification, repair and maintenance of industrial automatic
control equipment. Jianyin Sanzhi was deregistered in December
2015.

In March 2006, Mr. Zhang Degiang founded the Predecessor

Company with Mr. Zhang Degang (through his spouse, Ms. Zhu
Yingxuan).
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From March 2006 to March 2011, Mr. Zhang Degiang was the
director of the Predecessor Company. In March 2011, Mr.
Zhang Degiang took up the role as the general manager of the
Company, and he acted as the executive Director since July
2012. From April 2009 to December 2011, Mr. Zhang Degiang
acted as the director of Sanzhi Gongkong and as its supervisor
since December 2011. He has also been acting as the
supervisor of Jiangsu Sunlit since August 2009; the supervisor
of Haisheng Software since July 2011; and the general manager
of Wuxi Shangda since December 2011, Wuxi Shangda was
deregistered in April 2016.

Non-Executive Directors

Ms. ZHANG Jinghua (5k 5 ZE), aged 55, is the non-executive
Director. Ms. Zhang is the sister of Mr. Zhang Degang and Mr.
Zhang Degiang.

Ms. Zhang Jinghua graduated from high school in July 1978. In
February 2012 and February 2013, respectively, she was
recognised by B H E E T M £ (Jiangyin Municipal
Committee of the Communist Party of China®) and JLETAR
BT (People’s Government of the Jiangyin City*) as the “/85%
48 4238” (outstanding general manager®).

From March 1979 to November 1991, Ms. Zhang Jinghua
worked as a teacher in /L2 ZZEH 2 (Jiangyin City Yaosai
Secondary School*). From October 1991 to October 2002, she
worked in TR BT X BFMR /AR (iangyin Liantong Industrial
Company Limited*). Ms. Zhang obtained a qualification
certificate of speciality and technology in statistics (elementary
level) approved and issued by the Ministry of Personnel of the
PRC (FZEARKEMBE AEE) and conferred by the National
Bureau of Statistics of the PRC (Bl R & 5t /&) in October 1998.
From October 2002 to November 2005, she acted as the
director and manager of Jiangyin Sanzhi. From March 2004 to
November 2009, she acted as the director and general
manager of TR ={F TZE# M AR A7 (Jangyin Sanjia
Gongkong Machinery Company Limited*), which was principally
engaged in the design, sale and manufacture of industrial
automation control system. In order to allow Ms. Zhang to focus
on the business of the Group, TR = TIE#EWKER QR
(Jiangyin Sanjia Gongkong Machinery Company Limited*) was
deregistered in July 2012.
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Ms. Zhang Jinghua joined the Group in April 2009 as the
director of Sanzhi Gongkong, and in December 2011, she was
appointed as its general manager. Sanzhi Gongkong was
deregistered in December 2015. Since July 2012, she has acted
as our vice-general manager (&|# 4 E). In August 2013, she
was appointed as the executive Director. In August 2015, she
re-designated from an executive Director to a non-
executive Director and resigned as the vice-general manager.

was

Mr. GAO Feng (5U&), aged 50, joined the Group in July 2012,
and was appointed as the non-executive Director since 24 July
2012. Mr. Gao is the general partner of F/EBEEREEEHR L
(BFRA %) (Shanghai Yudao Investment Management Centre
(Limited Partnership)) and F/BtHE&KREHRAL(EREE)
(Shanghai Shidao Investment Development Centre (Limited
Partnership)*), who are the general partner and limited partner of
Yudao Tiansui (one of our Pre-Listing Investors), respectively. He
is also a member of the audit committee of the Board.

Mr. Gao Feng graduated from Hangzhou University (#7/1 K £2)
(now being part of Zhejiang University (#7/T KXZ) with a
bachelor’'s degree in law in July 1989. He is a holder of PRC
lawyer’s licence issued by E/EMRIAR (Shanghai City Ministry
of Justice®) in January 1991. From 1998 to 2013, Mr. Gao
worked in various renowned law firms in the PRC and is
currently a partner of a law firm.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LIU Chaojian (ZI8#), aged 52, was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director in July 2012. He is also a
member of the audit committee,
remuneration and appraisal committee and a member of the
strategic committee of the Board. Mr. Liu is not involved in the
Group’s research and development activities.

the chairman of the

Mr. Liu Chaojian graduated from FEZ A& E LS (Xian
Institute of Metallurgy and Architecture®) (now known as Xi'an
University of Architecture and Technology (78 & 2 2 &l £ A )
with a bachelor’'s degree in metallurgy in July 1987. In
November 1998, he was conferred by the State Bureau of
Metallurgical Industry (B1Z)8 & L3 B) with the qualification of
an advanced level engineer. Since July 1987, Mr. Liu has
worked in the China Metallurgical Industry Planning and
Research Institute ()8 &€ T M EIfF 5T fr) and his current
positions are the deputy chief engineer and senior engineer at
professor level.
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From September 2010 to August 2013, Mr. Liu Chaojian acted
as the independent director of Ningxia Xinri Hengli Steel Wire
Company Limited (FE 1 H18 74 %D B R 2 7)) (Shanghai
Stock Exchange Stock Code: 600165).

Mr. GAO Fuping (& ), aged 54, was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director in August 2013. Mr. Gao is
also a member of the remuneration and appraisal committee
and the nomination committee of the Board.

Mr. Gao Fuping obtained a master’s degree in law from Shanxi
University (IUFEAZ2) in July 1993 and a doctor’s degree in civil
commercial law (REJAEZ) from China University of Political
Science and Law (FEIEEKRE) in July 1998. In September
1995, Mr. Gao was admitted as a qualified lawyer by the
Ministry of Justice of the PRC. In September 2001, he was
recognised as the “2001F[E £+ [EHE X2 E" (dawn scholar of
the year 2001 (seventh year) by F/8M# BEZ &8 € (Shanghai
Education Committee®) and /@M A EEBE S E (Shanghai
Educational Development Foundation®).

Since July 1998, Mr. Gao Fuping has lectured in East China
University of Political Science and Law (¥ 5 BUZ AZ) and has
served as lecturer, deputy professor and professor. From June
2004 to February 2014, Mr. Gao served as the dean of the
Intellectual Property School (%1:% E # £Fx). Since March 2014,
Mr. Gao has served as the dean of BfE A 7Tt (Property Law
Research Institute*) of East China University of Political Science
and Law (¥R BUE K 2).

From June 2011 to March 2014, Mr. Gao Fuping acted as an
independent non-executive director of Founder Broadband
Network Service Company Limited (77 IE & 75 48 4% AR 15 I D B R
AE]), a joint stock company established in the PRC, which was
converted into Founder Broadband Network Services Co., Ltd.
(FIEEFHERB AR AR in April 2014.

Mr. HO Yuk Ming, Hugo (fJ&BA), aged 46, was appointed as
the independent non-executive Director in August 2013. Mr. Ho
is also the chairman of the audit committee and a member of
the nomination committee of the Board.
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Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo graduated from Hong Kong Shue Yan

College (now known as Hong

an honours diploma in accounting

Kong Shue Yan University) with
in July 1996. He was

admitted as an associate of the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants (now known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants) in March
accountant in Hong Kong.

2000 and is a certified public

Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo has over 14 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and finance-related matters. As of the date
of this annual report, Mr. Ho has worked or is working in the
following companies listed on the Stock Exchange:

Z218 % 5 46 5% B

Name Stock Code Position
REEEERAT 464 FEE

Best Wide Group Limited (B R20015 11 A B 1) accounting manager

(delisted in November 2001)

BREEERERERAR
(ERMABAXAEREREBRAR)
National United Resources Holdings Limited
(formerly known as eCyberChina Holdings

Limited at the material time)

254

E—RAEEABRALF 82
(EEMIBARTBEREBRERAR)

V1 Group Limited (formerly known as Yanion
International Holdings Limited at the
material time)

BaRREEERAR 467
United Energy Group Limited
ANTRAEREREROERAR 8301
Shenzhen Mingwah Aohan High Technology
Corporation Limited
SEEEERERAA 2212
Future Bright Mining Holdings Limited
EARENEERROERAR 6866
Zuoli Kochuang Micro-finance Company
Limited
BEEEERERAA 8315

King Force Group Holdings Limited

HITEE

executive director

B e
financial controller
WITES

executive director

AERBEHE
qualified accountant

aitie
accounting manager

NAEE
company secretary

NAEE
company secretary

MBBERATWE
chief financial officer &
company secretary

BUFHTES

independent non-executive

director

BUFHTES

EH

Tenure
20004 5H 22006474
May 2000 to July 2006

200438 £2004F12 A
March 2004 to September 2004

200438 22004412 A
March 2004 to December 2004

2005 1A £2006F2 A
January 2005 to February 2006

200554 A £ 200643 A
April 2005 to March 2006

20065 9H £2010F3A
September 2006 to March 2010

2008444 £2010%2 A
April 2008 to February 2010

20137 £2014F2 A28H
July 2013 to 28 February 2014

2014F48E 45
April 2014 to present

2014F4R 25
April 2014 to present

20165925

independent non-executive September 2016 to present

director
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From April 2010 to February 2014, Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo has
also acted as the accounting manager of Carlico International
Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kinco Enterprises
Limited). Mr. Ho has also acted as the financial controller of
Great China Brokerage Limited on a part-time basis from
October 2012 to February 2014.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. PENG Jiashan (& MLlU), aged 54, was appointed as our
Supervisor as a shareholder representative with effect from 15
August 2014. Mr. Peng graduated from T # AKE (Jiangsu
University) majoring in mechanical and electronic engineering
(HEETTH2) in July 2002. Mr. Peng received the qualification
of engineer (LI2RN) from &EIFTASER (Wuxi City Personnel
Bureau®) in September 2003.

From July 1988 to September 1991, Mr. Peng Jiashan worked in

currently known as # £ B 2 & 17 2 Bt (Wuxi School of
Technology*)) as an internship tutor (& & & EHAM). From
September 1991 to August 2005, Mr. Peng worked in JT &
B T 2 (Jiangyin City Transport Workers School®) as a
teacher. Since August 2005 till now, Mr. Peng has worked in ;T
BRAETRBERME A+ LR Jiangsu Provincial Jiangyin Central
School of Vocational Technology Education*, currently known as
TEREIIEREHEEER (Jiangsu Provincial Jiangyin Secondary
Professional School*) as a teacher. Mr. Peng has been granted
jointly by A TEmMRBHZEZEE (Jiangyin City Transport
Bureau Commission*) and L2223 /m (Jiangyin City Transport
Bureau®) the title of oA E (T{E)#&E (advanced (working)
producer®) in February 2000 and January 2001, respectively.

Ms. WEI Yi (f&2E), aged 48, was appointed as our Supervisor
as a shareholder representative with effect from 15 August
2014. Ms. Wei obtained a bachelor’'s degree in engineering
majoring in electronic precision machinery (T 18 % # ) from
Southeast University (BREAEZ) in July 1991. From August 1996
to July 1999, Ms. Wei studied Modern Financial Accounting
courses at Xidian University (7% & F £ KX2) and graduated
from Xidian University in July 1997. Ms. Wei received the
certificate of accounting professional issued by the Financial
Department of Shaanxi Province (PE784& BB EZ) in April 2008.
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After graduating from Southeast University, Ms. Wei worked
as an engineer in FEIA RN E21% £ # (General Logistics
Department of the People’s Liberation Army*). From January
2005 to December 2008, Ms. Wei worked as the chief financial
officer at PRPAAI ERIEABBR QA (Shaanxi Red Star Boiler
Company Limited*). Since May 2009 till now, Ms. Wei has worked
as the deputy general manager of EFEEFRIFZCEI) AR
37 (Zhuo Sui Electronic Science and Technology (Shenzhen)
Company Limited®).

Ms. YANG Jinghua (15 & Z), aged 36, was appointed as our
Supervisor as the employee representative with effect from July
2012. Ms. Yang graduated with a major in business
administration (modern corporate administration) from /1 9% & &
EIRAE (China Central Radio and TV University*) in May 20086.
From July 2000 to June 2006, she worked in Wuxi Alps
Electronic Company Limited (5 mM B EHEFABRAF) and
her last position was training officer. From June 2006 to
February 2007, she worked in A F & & & & R 15 B R A7 &5
2~ a] (Nippon Express (China) Company Limited* (now known
as A@BBIEYR(FR)BRAF), which was engaged in
statistics work. Since May 2009, Ms. Yang has worked in the
Company on personnel related work.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ou Guojian, aged 51, graduated from Soochow University
in June 1988, majoring in Organic Chemistry. In June 2000, he
was granted the engineer qualification by Job Title Working
Group of Technical Professionals of Changzhou City (% M &
ERMABBBEIEAES/ AR Q).

Mr. Ou Guojian served as the technical quality manager in & i
2 R (Wujin Pesticide Factory®) from August 1988 to May
2002, the R&D Engineer in &I EEE R B E R A7 (Changzhou
Kangli Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*) from May 2002 to March
2004; the R&D Engineer in T H)I{ETAHR AR Jiangyin
Baichuan Chemical Co., Ltd.*) from March 2004 to February
2005, the production technology minister in IR & Tt THR
~|] (Jiangyin Chengjiang Chemical Co., Ltd.) from March
2005 to July 2011. In August 2011, he joined the Company as
sales director and was promoted to vice-general manager in
October 2016.
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Mr. WANG Liming (¥ 3LBH), aged 37, graduated with a major
in automatic control from #& 5 B % 5 fif 82 ft (Wuxi Institute of
Technology*) in July 2004, and a major in business
administration from JTFEIAZ (Jiangnan University*) in July 2015.
Mr. Wang was granted the title of “Intelligent Staff” in the 2013—-
2014 Labour Competition (20132014 E B T4 5 EEE) in
April 2015, which was organised by the Federation of Trade
Unions of Changan Street, Huishan (BILEEZHEATE).

Mr. Wang Liming acted as the head of electric department of ;T
e = fE THE# M A R AR (Jiangyin Sanjia Gongkong Machinery
Company Limited*) from July 2004 to March 2010. (T2 =FT
2H AR AR (Jiangyin Sanjia Gongkong Machinery Company
Limited*) was deregistered in July 2012.

Mr. Wang Liming acted as the vice-general manager of Jiangyin
Sanzhi since March 2010. Jiangyin Sanzhi was deregistered in
December 2015.

Mr. Wang Liming acted as the director of the production
department of the Company, and was promoted to be vice-
general manager in August 2015.

Mr. ZHAO Yuanxing (#7C8), aged 52, was graduated with a
major in financial management from & RAME A2 (Nanjing
Normal University*) in June 2000, and obtained a qualification
certificate of speciality and technology in accounting
(intermediate level) approved and recognised by the Ministry of
Personnel of the PRC (A R £ 1B A% EB) and the Ministry
of Finance of the PRC (2 A R A1 Bf B &) in May 2002.
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Mr. Zhao Yuanxing worked for ;T k& E1% 8 #f 5 R A 7] (Jiangyin
Xingcheng Steel Limited Company*) from November 1984 to
September 1987; studied full-time in JA & & B B B B K
(Metallurgical Economic Management School*) in Jiangsu
Province from September 1987 to July 1989; acted as the
financial supervisor of ;LR ERFEHE AR AR (Jiangyin
Xingcheng Special Steel Limited Company*) from July 1989 to
May 2001; acted as the financial principal of 5 %1% 8 51 /5 (R
72A] (Wuxi Xingcheng Steel Products Co., Ltd*) from May 2001

FiEBEMARAA (Wuxi Zhongda Motors Company Limited*)
from February 2011 to February 2012. He acted as the financial
manager of the Company from February 2012 to September
2012, the head of the internal audit department of the Company
from October 2012 to May 2013, a manager of the integrated
management department unit from May 2013 to August 2015,
and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company since August
2015.

* For identification purposes only
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On 20 July 2012, the current session of the board of
supervisors of the Company was established upon the approval
of the inaugural meeting of the Company. The current session
of the board of supervisors comprises of three supervisors,
namely Mr. Peng Jiashan, Ms. Wei Yi and Ms. Yang Jinghua.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, for the Company’s
long term interests and its shareholders’ interests, the board of
supervisors of the Company acted in strict compliance with
relevant laws, regulations, rules, regulatory documents, the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”) and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and earnestly
performed their duties of supervision as to the acts of the
Directors and senior management of the Company. The main
area of work of the board of supervisors in 2017 is summarised
as follows:

. MEETINGS CONDUCTED BY THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

The board of supervisors of the Company convened two
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2017.

II. WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The work of the second session of the board of
supervisors mainly comprised of the followings:

1. Inspection over implementation of resolutions of
the general meetings
The board of supervisors of the Company exercised
supervision and inspection of the implementation of
the resolutions in general meetings by the Board and
the senior management through observation and
attendance at the board meetings and general
meetings. The board of supervisors is of the opinion
that the Directors and senior management of the
Company have diligently performed their duties in
compliance with resolutions of the general meetings.
No violation of any laws or regulations or the Articles
of Association or any act which jeopardises the
interests of the Company or shareholders of the
Company has been found in the performance of
duties by the Directors and senior management of the
Company.
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#k % Report of the Board of Supervisors

WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

(Continued)

2.

Inspection over legal compliance of the Group’s
operations

The board of supervisors of the Company exercised
supervision on a regular basis over the legal
compliance and rationality of the Group’s operation
and management in its ordinary works. It has also
exercised supervision over work performance of the
Board and senior management. The board of
supervisors is of the opinion that the Group’s
operation is sound and rational, and is in compliance
with all applicable laws, regulations and rules and the
Articles of Association. The members of the Board
and senior management of the Group have
conscientiously and diligently performed their duties,
and none of their acts would prejudice the interests of
the Group or the shareholders of the Company.

Inspection over the Group’s daily operating
activities

The board of supervisors of the Company exercised
supervision over the Group’s operating activities. The
board of supervisors is of the opinion that the Group
has a sound internal control system and has made a
great progress in the formulation and implementation
of its internal work procedures, thus effectively
controlled its exposure to various operating risks. The
Group’s operation is in compliance with the PRC laws
and regulations and the Articles of Association.
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. BEEEIE® Il. WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
(Continued)

4. BEXAKEHURBRR 4. Inspection over the Group’s financial condition
AAREEeERELASERN The board of supervisors of the Company has verified
MTFHEMBmME  BEER the Group’s 2017 consolidated financial statements,
A N B BT B B IS R supervised and inspected the Group’s implementation
KEHFNBAANRAEEEE of relevant financial policies and legislations as well as
RMBBZOFE - BEEgR details on the Group’s assets, financial income and
B COITHEGEMBmERER expenditure. The board of supervisors is of the
- f B 7 £R [ Y B A R O B R opinion that the consolidated financial statements for
BHEE 2017 fairly reflected the Group’s financial position and

operating results.

RERNK  ARAIEEEHEEREEST Looking forward, the board of supervisors of the Company will

AEERMBARBEEERZEZR & continue to carry out its duties in strict compliance with the

THBE  #EARAREFZ - Articles of Association and the relevant laws and regulations
and protect the interests of the shareholders of the Company.

EFELTE Peng Jiashan
)T Chairman of the Board of Supervisors
BT % - 20184F3H29H Jiangsu, China, 29 March 2018
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COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance and business ethics in the firm belief that
they are essential for enhancing investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its
corporate governance practices from time to time in order to
meet the rising expectations of stakeholders, comply with
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements and fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

After reviewing the Company’s corporate governance practices
and the relevant regulations of the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the Board is satisfied that
the Company has complied with the CG Code provisions for the
Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors and supervisors of the Company. Upon making
specific enquiries of all the Directors and supervisors of the
Company, each of the Directors and supervisors of the
Company confirmed that he/she has fully complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the
Year.

Any employee of the Company or director or employee of any
subsidiary of the Company who, because of their office in the
Company, are likely to be in possession of inside information in
relation to the securities of the Company, have also been
requested not to deal in securities of the Company when he
would be prohibited from dealing by the Model Code as if he
was a Director.
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k= Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board has established four
Board committees, being the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Strategic Committee (each a “Board
Committee” and collectively the “Board Committees”), to
oversee different areas of the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors, namely
Mr. Zhang Degang and Mr. Zhang Degiang, two non-executive
Directors, namely, Ms. Zhang Jinghua and Mr. Gao Feng, and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Liu
Chaogjian, Mr. Gao Fuping and Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo. Mr.
Zhang Degang is the chairman of the Board.

Their biographical details and their family relationships (where
applicable) are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” on pages 19 to
29 in this annual report. A list of the Directors identifying their
roles and functions and whether they are independent non-
executive Directors are available on the Company’s website.

Mr. Zhang Degang, an executive Director and the chairman of
the Board, is the brother of Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang
Jinghua, who are the executive Director and general manager of
the Group, and the non-executive Director, respectively. Save as
disclosed, there are no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships among the members of the
Board.

The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance
and reviews the corporate governance standard of the Group. It
also decides on matters such as annual and interim results,
major transactions, Directors’ appointments or re-appointments,
investment policies, dividend and accounting policies. The
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to the executive Directors
and the members of senior management. The functions and
powers that have been delegated are reviewed periodically to
ensure that they remain appropriate.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices on corporate governance
and legal and regulatory compliance of the Group, and the
training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management. The Board also reviews the
disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report to ensure
compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent access to
the Group’s senior management to fulfill their
Independent professional advice can be sought to assist the
relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the Group’s
expense upon their request. During the Year, all Directors are
provided with monthly updates on the Company’s performance
and financial position to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties.

duties.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their first
appointment of directorships or other positions which they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organisations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis and when necessary.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
shareholders of the Company and have exercised their duties
with care, skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of
the Group. Every newly appointed Director receives an induction
to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
business and operations of the Group and that he/she is fully
aware of his duties and responsibilities as a director under
applicable rules and requirements.

In compliance with the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code
and to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices, the Directors participated in the
following continuous professional development in the Year:

B =8 # BA T =T 4R Al &
EREHEMBHE
Reading materials
updating on new rules

EEgZ Name of Directors and regulations
BITESE Executive Directors

oK = Wl 5t & Mr. Zhang Degang v
oR 1258 S Mr. Zhang Degiang v
BITES Non-executive Directors

REFELZ T Ms. Zhang Jinghua v
= A Mr. Gao Feng v
BIUAFRITES Independent Non-executive Directors

2R E Mr. Liu Chaojian v
CEEL:EES Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo v
SBFEE Mr. Gao Fuping v

M ARARAERSEFEWIAN S BEEFEG
B R BRI ©

Note: The Company has received from each of the Directors the confirmations on
taking continuous professional training.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer are separate and are not performed by the same
individual as this ensures better checks and balances and
hence better corporate governance. Mr. Zhang Degang holds
the position of the chairman of the Board, who is primarily
responsible for the overall strategies, planning and business
development of the Group. Mr. Zhang Degiang serves as the
general manager of the Group, who is primarily responsible for
the operations of the Group.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to
provide independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving
adequate control and balances for the Group to protect the
overall interests of the shareholders and the Group. They serve
actively on the Board and Board Committees to provide their
independent and objective views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board. One of
the independent non-executive Directors has the appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has submitted an
annual confirmation in writing of his independence to the
Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on
the contents of such confirmations, the Company considers that
all independent non-executive Directors are independent and
free of any relationship that could materially interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgement.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of the Board Committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee and Strategic
Committee. Each Board Committee has its defined and written
terms of reference approved by the Board covering its duties,
powers and functions. Their terms of reference are available on
the Company’s website.
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k& Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties, including access to management or
professional advice if considered necessary.

(i) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Audit
Committee consists of three Directors, namely Mr. Ho Yuk
Ming, Hugo (independent non-executive Director), Mr. Liu
Chaojian (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Gao
Feng (non-executive Director). Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo, who
has appropriate professional qualifications and experience
in accounting matters, was appointed as the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to
assist the Board in providing an independent view of the
effectiveness of the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems, relationship with
external auditor of the Group, oversee the audit process
and perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned
by the Board. These include reviewing the Group’s interim
and annual reports.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has, inter alia,
reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the six months ended 30 June 2017 and for the
year ended 31 December 2016, respectively, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
the report prepared by the external auditor covering major
findings in the course of the audit, the selection and
appointment of the external auditor as well as the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

Subsequent to the end of the Year, the Audit Committee
has reviewed the consolidated financial statements for the
Year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(i)

Name of member

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Year, four meetings of the Audit Committee
were held. The attendance records of individual committee
members are set out below:

HE @AY
Attendance/
Number of Meetings

Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo 4/4
Mr. Liu Chaojian 4/4
Mr. Gao Feng 4/4

(ii)

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee was
established with terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee
comprises three Directors, namely Mr. Liu Chaojian
(independent non-executive Director), Mr. Gao Fuping
(independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Zhang
Degiang (executive Director). Mr. Liu Chaojian is the
chairman of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee.

The principal
Appraisal
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
structure and policy for all Directors and senior
management as well as the specific
packages for the executive Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
remuneration

responsibilities of the Remuneration and

Committee are to review and make

remuneration

transparent process for developing such
policy. No Director takes part in any discussion on his own
The Company’s objective for its
remuneration policy is to maintain fair and competitive
packages based on business requirements and industry
practice. In order to determine the level of remuneration
and fees paid to the members of the Board, market rates
and factors such as each Director’'s workload,
performance, responsibility, job complexity and the Group’s
performance are taken into account.

remuneration.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
(ii)
During the Year,

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee (Continued)
the Remuneration and Appraisal

Committee has, inter alia, reviewed the remuneration policy

and structure
management of the Company.

relating to the Directors and senior

During the Year, one meeting of the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee was held. The attendance records of
individual committee members are set out below:

Name of member

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Liu Chaojian
Gao Fuping
Zhang Degiang

The

HE E@mRY
Attendance/
Number of Meetings

11
1/1
11

remuneration of the members of the senior

management of the Group by band for the Year is set out

below:
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(iii) Nomination Committee
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The Nomination Committee was established with terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code and comprises
three Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Degang (executive
Director), Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo (independent non-
executive Director) and Mr. Gao Fuping (independent non-
executive Director). Mr. Zhang Degang is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are to review the composition of the Board, including its
structure, size and diversity, at least annually to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Group. It is also responsible to consider and recommend to
the Board any suitably qualified person to become a
member of the Board, monitor the succession planning of
Directors and assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee will also
give consideration to the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) when identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become the members of the Board, and the
Board will review the Board Diversity Policy, so as to
develop and review measurable objectives for implementing
the Board Diversity Policy and to monitor the progress on
achieving these objectives.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has, inter alia,
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board
and assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors.

During the Year, one meeting of the Nomination Committee

BERIZEeKEME ELHEI W0 was held. The attendance records of individual committee
T members are set out below:
HE EHERE
Attendance/
REHE Name of member Number of Meetings
o 12 Ml 5t 4 Mr. Zhang Degang 1/1
Al B A& Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo 1/1
=B EREE Mr. Gao Fuping 1/1
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(iv) Strategic Committee
The Strategic Committee was established with terms of
reference and comprises three Directors, namely Mr.
Zhang Degang (executive Director), Mr. Zhang Degiang
(executive Director) and Mr. Liu Chaojian (independent
non-executive Director). Mr. Zhang Degang is the chairman
of the Strategic Committee.

The primary function of the Strategic Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the long-term
development strategies of the Company.

During the Year, the Strategic Committee has, inter alia,
reviewed the financing plans and long term development of
the Company and given suggestions accordingly.

During the Year, one meeting of the Strategic Committee
was held. The attendance records of individual committee
members are set out below:

HE @AY
Attendance/
Number of Meetings

Mr. Zhang Degang 1/1
Mr. Zhang Degiang 11
Mr. Liu Chaojian 1/1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management, and the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code, and
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.
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BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board is required to
hold at least four Board meetings each year, to be convened
and hosted by the chairman of the Board. A notice of at least
fourteen days shall be dispatched for a regular Board meeting
while the notice of an extraordinary Board meeting shall be
despatched 5 days prior to the date of the meeting. The notice
shall state the time, venue and means by which the Board
meeting will be convened, and an agenda and accompanying
board papers shall be sent to all the Directors at least 3 days
before the relevant meeting.

The quorum for a Board meeting is the presence of at least half
of the total number of the Directors. A Director may attend the
Board meeting in person, or appoint another Director in writing
as his proxy to attend the Board meeting. The secretary to the
Board of the Company is responsible for preparing and keeping
the minutes of Board meetings and ensuring that such minutes
are available for inspection by any Director.

During the Year, six Board Meetings were held and the
attendance records are set out below:

HE SEHERH
Attendance/
Number of Meetings

. Zhang Degang 6/6
. Zhang Degiang 6/6

. Zhang Jinghua 6/6
. Gao Feng 6/6
. Liu Chaojian 6/6
. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo 6/6
. Gao Fuping 6/6
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Name of director

Mr.
Mr.

GENERAL MEETINGS

During the Year, the Company convened one annual general
meeting, one class meeting for holders of H shares and one
class meeting for holders of domestic shares of the Company.
All these meetings were held on 9 June 2017 and the
attendance records are set out below:

HE @AY
Attendance/
Number of Meetings

Zhang Degang 3/3
Zhang Degiang 3/3
. Zhang Jinghua 3/3
. Gao Feng 3/3
. Liu Chaojian 3/3
. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo 3/3
. Gao Fuping 3/3

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Directors shall be
subject to election at the Company’s general meetings with a
term of office of three years and may be re-elected. The
Company has implemented a set of effective procedures for the
appointment of new Directors. The Nomination Committee shall,
in accordance with provisions of the relevant laws and
regulations and the Articles of Association, take into account the
practical situations of the Company, consider the selection
criteria,
Directors, and record and submit the resolutions to the Board
All newly nominated Directors are subject to
election and approval at general meetings. Pursuant to the
Articles of Association, all current Directors and Supervisors will
retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Friday, 8 June 2018 (the “AGM").

selection procedures and terms of office of the

for approval.

Except for Ms. Zhang Jinghua’s service contract as a non-
executive Director for an appointment term commencing from
28 August 2015 and expiring upon the end of the second
session of the Board, each of the Directors has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy in March 2015.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The board of supervisors of the Company consists of three
members. The employee representative supervisor, namely Ms.
Yang Jinghua, was elected by employees, and the other
supervisors were elected by the shareholders of the Company.
Each of the supervisors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date. The functions and duties of the board of
supervisors include, but are not limited to: reviewing and
verifying financial reports and, if in doubt, appointing certified
public accountants and practicing auditors to re-examine the
Company’s financial information; investigate when an unusual
operation situation of the Company is discontinued; supervising
the performance of the Directors and senior management
members, and monitoring whether they had acted in violation of
the laws, regulations and Articles of Association in the
performance of their duties; requesting the Directors and senior
management members to rectify actions which are detrimental
to the Company’s interests; and exercising other rights given to
them under the Articles of Association.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged in a service contract with an
external service provider, Ms. Ho Wing Yan, who was appointed
as the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”). Mr. Zhang Degang, the chairman of the Board and
executive Director, is the primary corporate contact person of
the Company with Ms. Ho.

Being the Company Secretary, Ms. Ho plays an important role
in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow
within the Board and that the Board policies and procedures
are followed. Ms. Ho is responsible for advising the Board on
corporate governance matters and should also facilitate
induction and professional development of Directors. During the
Year, the Company Secretary has complied with the relevant
professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
Company’s consolidated financial statements which give a true
and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash
flows for the Year and in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
Company has selected appropriate accounting policies and has
applied them consistently based on prudent and reasonable
judgments and estimates. The Board considers that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future and is not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to any events or conditions that may affect
the business of the Group or cast doubts on its ability to
continue as going concern.

The responsibility of PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s
external auditor, with respect to financial reporting is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor's Report” in this
annual report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed as the external
auditor of the Company. During the Year, the fees paid or
payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of its audit
services provided to the Group was RMB1.5 milion and no
non-audit services were provided.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external
auditor during the Year under review.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance structure,
enable all its shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their
rights in an informed manner and allow all shareholders to engage
actively with the Company. Under the Company’s Articles of
Association, the shareholder communication policy and other
relevant internal procedures of the Company, the shareholders of
the Company enjoy, among others, the following rights:

(i) Participation at general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for direct communication between the Board
and the shareholders of the Company. The Company
encourages the participation of the shareholders through
annual general meetings and other general meetings where
the shareholders meet and exchange views with the
Board, and to exercise their right to vote at meetings. The
Company shall arrange notices of meetings and circulars
containing details on proposed resolutions to be sent to
the shareholders no less than 45 days before the relevant
meeting. At general meetings, separate resolutions are
proposed on each substantial issue, including the election
of individual Directors.

—Z -t FE#HRE ANNUAL REPORT 2017

47



B EE RS Corporate Governance Report

PR iR B IR SR EEF ()

(i) AEEEEN
ARAAEERELFREAS @A
BEBRRACSRNESENZEES

(iii)

FEENEERECEHEERM
EHE#R B EHEANETEB
MEZXIRNRRNBEBEETELE S
(Rt ABFBEBTEBE-SHInG
F03318) R ARMEK -

BHERREIXE
RIFEBBIRAMA - BBLATHE
10% A LRI R - BHENER
FABREZSARBRRERIAS -
ERBERIETEAR  EFERARE
ERCOERNABEREARE LA
HREBREAMAEREIAENE®R
[E] f&

HEFERBEARBREN RS A
REFSELARRZRABARH
Hx%?ﬁA BE-WASEERARE
&% ABUSHR BRI E o

WMEFSERERRFIFINARE - 3k
FEWEIERETHRKIERE @ 85
WA A10% A FIR DR E
ERNERZERFARNAQRESS
REZAABRREINKRE -

—

WARREEEREAMBKRRRFRIA
g ARPRIERIEARRE LR

gRE - MAtTEEREEE A
E15 A8 B A SR AL -

B

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Enquiries to the Board

The Company encourages shareholders to attend
shareholders’ meetings and make enquiries by either directly
raising questions on both operational and governance
matters to the Board and Board Committees at the general
meetings or providing written notice of such enquiries for
the attention of the Company Secretary at the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong currently
situated at 33rd Floor, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Convening extraordinary general meetings

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, shareholder(s) alone or
jointly holding 10% or more of the shares have the right to
require the Board to convene a shareholders’ extraordinary
general meeting by a written request. Within ten days after
receipt of the request, the Board shall, in accordance with
laws, regulations and the Articles of Association, gives a
written response in respect of whether or not it agrees to
convene a shareholders’ extraordinary general meeting.

If the Board agrees to convene a shareholders’ extraordinary
general meeting, a notice of shareholders’ general meeting
shall be issued within five days after the Board reaches such
a resolution. Where the notice alters the original proposal, the
approval of the relevant shareholders shall be required.

If the Board refuses to convene a shareholders’ extraordinary
general meeting, or fails to respond within ten days after
receipt of the request, the shareholder(s) alone or in
aggregate holding 10% or more of the Shares have the right
to propose to the board of supervisors of the Company by a
written requisition the convening of a shareholders’
extraordinary general meeting.

If the board of supervisors of the Company agrees to
convene a shareholders’ extraordinary general meeting, a
notice of shareholders’ general meeting shall be issued within
five days after receipt of the request. Where the notice alters
the original proposal, the approval of the relevant
shareholders shall be required.
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Failure of the board of supervisors of the Company to issue
a notice of general meeting within the stipulated period shall
be deemed as its failure to convene and preside over a
general meeting, and shareholder(s) alone or in aggregate
holding 10% or more of the Company’s Shares for ninety
consecutive days or more shall be entitled to convene and
preside over the meeting.

The shareholders require to convene an extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting shall follow the following
procedures:

(@) Shareholders who separately or jointly hold 10% or
more of the shares of the Company carrying voting
rights may request the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting or class meeting by
signing a written request or several copies in the
same form and to illustrate the proposed resolutions
of the meetings. The Board shall convene an
extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting as
soon as practicable upon receipt of the foresaid
written request. The aforesaid amount of
shareholding is calculated as of the date of the
submission of the written request by the
Shareholders.

(b) A Shareholder’s general meeting shall be convened in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

All reasonable expenses incurred by convening and
holding the aforesaid meeting by shareholders due to the
failure of the Board to hold such meeting in response to
the aforesaid request shall be borne by the Company.
Such expenses shall be deducted from the amounts due
by the Company to the Director(s) who have defaulted their
duties.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

(iv) Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general
meeting
In overseeing and monitoring the business operation of the
Company, the shareholders of the Company have the right
to put forward proposals and raise inquiries. Shareholders
individually or together holding 3% or more of the
Company’s voting shares have the right to put up ad hoc
proposals in writing to the Company for the attention of
the Company Secretary at the principal place of business
in Hong Kong currently situated at 33rd Floor, Shui On
Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and the
Company shall include such ad hoc proposals into the
agenda for such general meeting if they are the matters
which fall within the functions and powers of general
meeting.

The contents of the proposals to be raised shall be within
the scope of duties of the general meetings. It shall have
a clear topic and specific matters to be resolved on, and
shall be in compliance with relevant requirements of the
laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of
Association.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Articles of Association during the
Year.

The Articles of Association is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the Year, the Audit Committee has discussed with the
management of the Company the matters relating to risk
management and internal control of the Group. The Board
complied with the code provisions on risk management and
internal control as set out in the CG code. The Board has
overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is wiling to take in achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems for the
Group. The systems are designed to manage the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets
against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against
the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems has been conducted annually and the
systems are considered to be effective and adequate. Self-
assessment and comprehensive risk assessment surveys have
been conducted during the review. The Company also has an
internal audit function to carry out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems,
and has procedures in place to keep information confidential
and manage actual or potential conflicts of interest. Stringent
internal structures have been designed to prevent the misuse of
inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.
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PREERUEBALRERASEERD All Directors and those employees who could have access to,

EEBEAHEGEZEME TE - HEE and monitor, the information of the Group are responsible for

A TEFERZEER - AEBEMEES K making appropriate precautions to prevent abuse or misuse of

ZHRAAEE B RRIE AR e such information. Employees of the Group are prohibited from
using inside information for their own benefit.

EFeNAEARBLEMRANASE KA The Board is also vested with the responsibility to disseminate

XM ARERRERAREHEMAE to the shareholders of the Company and the public any inside

N=P=N information in the form of announcements and circulars, in
accordance with the Listing Rules.
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c. RABEHENXEHRL:

The Group is committed to promoting sustainable development,
which is extremely important to create long-term value for the
Group’s shareholders, clients, employees, other stakeholders, as
well as the general public. The Group cares about the impact of
its daily operation on the environment and the society and
strives to set a good example for the public; hence in
conducting business operation, it also makes great effort to
meet the interests of all stakeholders, the economy, the
environment, the society and corporate governance and strives
to achieve a fine balance.

ENVIRONMENTAL

A1. Policies on emissions of exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
Protecting the environment is one of our key concerns; we
are committed to protecting the environment and focusing
on environmental protection in our operation, hoping to
reduce our long-term negative impact on the environment
through close supervision and stringent control.

1. Energy Management

As indirect greenhouse gas emissions, which are
generated from our daily electricity power
consumption, are the main source of the Group’s
carbon footprint, we will keep monitoring and
disclosing the Group’s carbon footprint to find out
and control the impact of our daily operation on the
environment. At the same time, we will implement the
following energy-saving and energy efficiency
measures at various office locations to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions:

a. Install high-performance electrical equipments;

b.  Require the purchasing department to purchase
energy-efficient products;

c. Employ automatic lighting control systems;

—Z -t FE#HRE ANNUAL REPORT 2017



R - £ REAIMS Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE
Al EHABERRBAEREHER  MKkR
TS  FEREETEEMH
EEZHBE G
1. BEREE(#)
d WMABERBLEDRA:

e. BIBMKYAMARAREN
R LEHREEERE - A
AR BE R 7 2 N e 45
EMEERRE

. MABEHRAEZEA
Yt

=

B201751A18 #£ 2 8 B &
AEENBHPIETGFRE
NERBR HEEENIR
7 tekEams ((RE - #
EREGRED)FHEE -

B W %

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A1l.

Policies on emissions of exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes (Continued)

1. Energy Management (Continued)

d. Deploy LED lighting on office floors;

e. Require employees to turn off the light and any
unnecessary energy device to reduce energy
consumption and avoid unnecessary waste of
energy;

f. Utilise natural light as much as possible on office
floors;

g. Install auxiliary electricity meters to monitor
electricity consumption; and

h. Other energy-saving and energy efficiency
measures.

Our finance department should collect information
about the Group’s usage of electricity annually for the
management to disclose in the Environmental, Social
and Governance report (the “ESG report”) in each
financial year starting from 1 January 2017.
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Policies on emissions of exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes (Continued)
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2.

Waste Management

In order to lighten the load of landfills, we adopt a
responsible waste management policy, including
waste avoidance, reducing waste from its source and
reuse, recycle and responsible disposal of waste. Our
offices should post memos and notices at
conspicuous places, encouraging the employees to
reduce the production of waste. We have introduced
waste separation measures from the sources of:

o

Waste paper (excluding paper cup, paper plate,
etc.);

b.  Metal (including aluminum cans and other metal
cans);

c. Plastics (plastic bottles, containers and

packaging materials); and

d.  Other recyclables (such as old clothes, electrical
appliances, computers, magazines, etc.).

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
During the Year, the Group has complied with the
PRC Environmental Protection Law (% A R A1
IRIB(R#E %), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution (FF A R H A E K55
Bh345%), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution (7 # A R H A& K
RIGRAE) and the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Noise
Pollution (F# A R HFBIR TR E )53 F)8)%) and
other relevant laws and regulation on environmental
protection in all material respects.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A2. Policies on effective use of resources (including
energy, water and other raw materials)

1.

Reducing electricity consumption

We will comply with the Group’s policies on
emissions of exhaust gas and greenhouse gas,
discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous wastes to reduce
electricity consumption.

Paper reduction

In order to reduce waste paper, we have developed
the following measures:

a. Deploy recycling bins to collect used paper
products such as waste papers, posters, letters
and envelopes;

b. Place waste paper recycling bins next to printers
for setting aside waste papers from papers that
have been printed only on one side and can be
reused;

c.  Print on both sides of paper;
d.  Write on both sides of paper;

e. Bring your own cup and avoid using paper cup;

f. Reuse stationeries such as file folders and
envelopes;

g. Reuse packaging boxes; and

h.  Ship waste paper, other than those containing
confidential information, to scrap paper
companies or paper mills for them to be
recycled into new paper.

Our finance department shall collect information
about the paper products the Company purchased
and the waste papers that are shipped to scrap
paper companies or paper mills for the management
to disclose in the ESG report in each financial year
starting from 1 January 2017.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A2. Policies on effective use of resources (including
energy, water and other raw materials) (Continued)

3.

Water conservation

In Hong Kong and the PRC, fresh water is a precious
resource. We should economise on water, and try our
best to protect water resource, for which we have
developed the following measures:

a. Repair dripping faucet or hose in a timely
manner;

b.  Adopt effective water-saving production methods
and instruments;

c.  Check water consumption regularly; and

d.  Minimise water pressure.

Green procurement

Green procurement is aimed at reducing
environmental load. Quality, cost, delivery time are the
main focuses when the Group procures goods or
chooses suppliers, but on top of that, we give priority
to environmental friendly and energy-saving products.

We adopt the following measures:

a. Give priority to the most energy-efficient
products;

b.  Give priority to effective water-saving products;

c. Require the suppliers to
material; and

reduce packaging

d.  Remind suppliers that we value environmental
protection and energy saving.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A3. Policies on minimising the Group’s significant impact
on environment and natural resources
The Group manages and minimises the impact it may
cause to the environment, directly or indirectly, through the
following methods:

1. Make sure its business operation comply with the
environmental laws in Hong Kong and its operating
locations, including the PRG;

2. Establish and improve environmental protection
mechanism to ensure that its operation does not
pollute water and landg;

3. Monitor gas emissions and use of resources, establish
emission reduction target;

4.  Make sure that in our daily business operation, with
all efforts, we conserve energy, water and other raw
materials to reduce direct impact on the environment;

5. Whenever the Company holds banquet, shark fin is
out of question and sustainable seafood should be
served. Order reasonable quantity and reduce waste;

6. Urge the employees to reduce paper usage and adopt
other energy-saving measures; and

7. Cooperate with government agencies and support
environmental organizations’ activities.
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SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

As employees are important assets of the Company, we care
about their well-being, respect their personal traits, make sure
that all employees are subject to legislative protection and have
equal opportunity in their career path. We also strive to
increase their sense of belonging to the Group.

B1. Policies on salary, dismissal, recruitment, promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and
welfare
1. Salary

We offer competitive pay and benefits to our
employees according to their job requirements and
individual performance. We will annually review the
overall salary and benefits annually to ensure the
Company’s competitiveness in local markets, and we
will also refer to the relevant industries and similar
organisations. Each year, Key Performance Indicators
will provide direction and guidance to the employees’
individual work plan. We also assess the
achievements and contributions of the employees to
appraise and reward them.

2. Dismissal

We ensure that all employees are subject to
applicable employment laws, including:

a. Whenever an employee resigns or is being laid
off, the human resources department (“HR”)
should interview him or her before the
termination to find out the reason of the
termination;

b. HR is required to issue employment verification
document to the dismissed employee;

c. When the employer terminates an employee’s
employment contract, the dismissed employee
shall be given due notice or wages in lieu of
notice, and his or her annual leave and
maternity leave should not be counted towards
the notice period;
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SOCIAL (continued)
B1.

Policies on salary, dismissal, recruitment, promotion,

working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and
welfare (Continued)

2. Dismissal (Continued)

d.

An employee cannot be dismissed when she has
been confirmed pregnant or given notice of
pregnancy;

An employee cannot be dismissed when he or
she takes a paid sick leave;

An employee cannot be dismissed due to his or
her giving evidence or information in any legal
proceeding relating to the enforcement of labour
laws, any industrial accident or any breach of
work safety regulations;

An employee cannot be dismissed due to his or
her membership in labour union or participating
in labour union activities; and

An employee cannot be dismissed if he or she
is injured on duty, and a compensation
agreement has not yet been reached or the
relevant evaluation certificate has not yet been
issued.
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SOCIAL (continued)

B1.

Policies on salary, dismissal, recruitment, promotion,

working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and
welfare (Continued)

3.

Recruitment and promotion

In the Group, recruitment and promotion should be
fair and open for all employees, and cannot be
affected by age, sex, physical or mental health status,
marital status, family status, race, skin colour,
nationality, religion, political affiliation, sexual
orientation and other factors, and the employees will
be recognised and rewarded for their contribution,
work performance and skills, while the Company will
do its best to provide them with good working
environment and development opportunity.

Working hours and rest-periods
The employees shall enjoy proper rest periods under
the applicable laws and regulations.

Employees are entitled to enjoy the following rest
periods:

a. Each employee can take two days off in every 7
days;

b.  Statutory holidays;

c. Paid annual leave prescribed by their employment
contracts;

d. Sick leave;

e. Marriage leave;

f. Maternity leave; and

g. Paternity leave.
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SOCIAL (continued)

B1.

Policies on salary, dismissal, recruitment, promotion,

working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and
welfare (Continued)

5.

Equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits and welfare

Equal opportunity must be provided on recruitment,
training, promotion, transfer, remuneration, benefits
and termination of contract. Such opportunities shall
not be affected by factors such as age, gender,
physical or mental health status, marital status, family
status, race, skin colour, nationality, religion, political
affiliation and sexual orientation.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
During the Year, the Group has complied with the
Labour Contract Law of the PRC (% A & LA E 4
& & [EE) and other relevant laws and regulations on
employment in all material respects.

62 FEHRDNENERHER 2T WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED



RIE - HEREJAIRE Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HE

B2. R2THFRIERREESBRIEE
HEEB R
BMBNIRERE R EEREM
22  BMERKMBEEIETHEAE
A ERREELEREN - RIEBIR
M- MERNIERE I
BB AT SR -

1. HEA BRPWAER

EREBAER]

THEESSRE/EEREN:

2. REHEBNABBRHIIEFI LR
EHITRF

3. REIRHFLFNRERGER
RETRHEERRE:

4. BELRBEEHRE - U
RPARERTHERRBELER

EE 3

5. BYUBSESEHR WEE N
KKIRIEEE R

6. EMTHBM - BTG BL

7. BRIUBTNZERINIEE
SN B AR A

8. REHELER—ERRE EER
Z2HTIEST:

SOCIAL (Continued)

B2. Policies on safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards
We are committed to protecting the health and safety of
the employees and the community, and we require all
employees to comply with all relevant occupational health
and safety regulations, and do our utmost to provide them
with a safe and healthy working environment. As a result,
we have implemented the following measures:

1. Develop internal guidelines to ensure that offices and
factories are in line with or better than the

requirements of relevant laws;

2. Establish safety procedures for the recognized
dangerous work;

3. Provide necessary protective equipment and medical
insurance to the employees;

4. Ensure that the offices and working environment are
healthy and safe by regularly checking the

machineries and equipment;

5. Establish emergency measures such as fire or
explosion emergency plans;

6. Regularly arrange rescue, fire and evacuation drills;
7. Establish mechanism to record industrial injuries and
analyse their causes;

8. Provide and maintain an environmental-friendly, healthy
and safe working condition;
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B2.

B3.

Policies on safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards (Continued)

9.  Drinking is not allowed during the working hours unless
with prior approval;

10. Actively promote environmental protection, health and
safety awareness of the employees, and support
development of environmental protection, health and
safety in the industry;

11. Provide all employees with job information, guidance,
training and supervision as required; and

12.  Provide a smoke-free working environment.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the Year, the Group has complied with the Social
Insurance Law of the PRC (FEA R EAMBEH &R K E)
and other relevant laws and regulations on health and
safety of employees in all material respects.

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work

Talent development is an important part of our human
resource strategy. We understand that the employees’
knowledge and skills are essential to the Company’s
operation and business growth. Good development plan
lays a good foundation for the employees to face business
challenge in the future, and it also helps them to grasp
promotion opportunities and fulfill their career aspirations.
We provide the employees with effective training and
develop a clear promotion ladder, ensuring that the
employees have the required skills; we also nurture
outstanding successors for the Group and foster learning
atmosphere. The Group conducts performance evaluation
annually, and provide the staff with appropriate training,
and offer job, development and promotion opportunities for
outstanding employees based on the assessment result.
Under the Group’s human resource management system
requirements, the HR manager is responsible for carrying
out related assessment and training.
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The Group firmly adopts a zero-tolerance policy on child
and forced labour, and strictly forbids such conduct which
is prohibited by international standards and relevant local
regulations of the places in which we operate. In all part of
our business operation (including our subcontractors or
suppliers), child and forced labour is not allowed and we
treat child and forced labour as a serious crime. Our
policies on preventing child and forced labour are as
follows:

1. Child labour refers to employment of people under 16
years of age, and if any country or region in which
the Company or its subsidiary operates has a more
stringent definition of child labour, such definition shall
prevail;

2. Forced labour refers to people providing labour or
service against their wil, as a punishment or under
threat;

3. Hired employees must be at least 16 years of age. The
Group shall never recruit child labour and forced
labour, and if it knows that its suppliers or
subcontractors employ any child and forced labour,
the Group will not conduct business with them
anymore;

4.  Employees under 18 may not engage in any possible
hazardous work and are prohibited from working at
night lest it might affect their education;

5.  Before hiring any job applicant, HR should take
effective procedures to verify his or her age. HR
should check documents that can prove the age of
the applicant, including government-issued photoed
identification and birth certificate, driver’s license,
household register, academic certificates or any other
credentials that can prove the date of birth. HR must
ensure that the applicant’s appearance is consistent
with the photograph on the identification card;
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B4. Policies on preventing child and forced labour
(Continued)

6.

HR, especially those responsible for recruitment,
should take part in prevention training about child and
forced labour;

If employment of child labour under the legal minimum
age is found in the Group, we will see to the best
interests of the child, and take the following measures
in accordance with the relevant legislations:

a. Take the child away from the workplace
immediately, and ensure the safety of the child;

b. Immediately notify the person in charge of HR to
verify all relevant information, confirm whether
the child is under 16 years of age, sever labour
relations with the child, notify the local social
welfare institution, and take remedial measures
to protect the child’s best interest;

c. Send the child to a special occupational health
inspection institution to do medical check-up to
confirm the child’s physical and mental health,
and conduct investigation to fully understand the
child’s situation;

d.  Provide the child with re-employment when he or
she reaches legal minimum age for employment;
and

e. Immediately find out the problems in the hiring
process of the operating location and take
improvement measures within 90 working days.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B4. Policies on preventing child and forced labour
(Continued)
8. If forced labour is found in the Group, we will take the
following measures in accordance with the relevant
legislations:

a. Take the labour away from the workplace
immediately and ensure the safety of the labour;

b. Immediately notify the person in charge of HR to
verify all relevant information and confirm
whether the person is subject to compulsory
labour;

c. Send the labour to a special occupational health
inspection institution to do medical check-up to
confirm the labour’s physical and mental health,
and conduct investigation to fully understand the
labour’s situation; and

d. Immediately find out the problems in the hiring
process of the operating location and take
improvement measures within 90 working days.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the Year, the Group has complied with the Labour
Law of the PRC (% A R £ MBI 8))%) and the Labour
Contract Law of the PRC (FZEAREMBHLE S [FEE) and
other relevant laws and regulations on employment in all
material respects.
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OPERATING PRACTICES

B5. Policies on managing environmental and social risks
of the supply chain
We attach importance to developing and maintaining long-
term relationships with our suppliers, and look forward to
forming long-term partnerships with them. We will take a
fair and open principle on procurement of materials and
services. We will only cooperate with the suppliers that
share common moral values and standards with us. The
Group also supports and encourages the suppliers to
promote efficient use of resources and environmental
protection and fulfill corporate social responsibility:

1. We advocate the principle of fair and open competition,
and develop and maintain long-term relationships with
the suppliers and contractors based on mutual trust;

2. We have strict ethical standards in the procurement of
materials and services to ensure the quality of the
finished products and maintain the continued
confidence of the clients, suppliers and general
public;

3. We review our suppliers and assess them based on
price, quality, suitability and demands, and only those
rated as qualified can be our approved suppliers. We
only purchase from the approved suppliers;

4.  We conduct follow-up assessment on the suppliers
and, if necessary, review them through a third party
organisation. When a supplier is found to be
inconsistent with the Company’s policy or contractual
requirements, the Company will cease future
cooperation until the situation has been improved;

5. In an unprejudiced way, we choose appropriate,
capable and responsible suppliers;

6. We support and encourage the suppliers to improve
the environmental-friendliness of their products and
services, and their employees’ benefits and
protection;

7. The suppliers must comply with the relevant laws,
regulations and contractual obligations; and

8. We adopt effective monitoring and management
systems to detect and prevent bribery, fraud or other
misconducts in procurement and bidding processes.
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B6. Policies on health and safety, advertising, labeling
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and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress

Health and safety of products and services

We are committed to providing the customers with high-
quality products and services and settling customer
complaints effectively, continuously improving service level
and ensuring customer satisfaction. Accordingly, the
following measures are taken:

1. Make sure that the products and services comply with
related laws and standards;

2.  Provide the customers with accurate product
information and high-quality products, and develop
return policy and after-sale service for related
products;

3. Take the initiative to explain the problem and find a
mutually satisfactory solution for the customers if
there is a problem with a product; and

4. Keep proper records after handling a customer’s
complaint and arrange the relevant department to
review the complaint and develop measures to
prevent the recurrence of similar complaints, so that
the Group’s service quality keeps improving.

Advertising, labeling and protection of customer
information

Customer information will only be used for specific
business purpose and not for other unrelated purposes. All
employees should handle and use customer information
with extreme caution, protect customer information, and
comply with statutory requirements in the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
During the Year, the Group has complied with the
Production Safety Law of the PRC (RFEAREMBEZ 24
EE %) and other relevant laws and regulations on health
and safety of products and services in all material
respects.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B7. Policies on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering

Ethics and integrity is the cornerstone of the Company’s
success. We adopt a zero tolerance approach to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering. In their daily work,
the Directors, management and staff must comply with all
related national and local government laws and regulations
on prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. All employees not only have responsibility to
understand and comply with the above regulations on
prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering, but also have obligation to report violation to
the appropriate person. Any person, who contravenes the
regulations, will be subject to disciplinary sanction. We will
make every effort to protect the informer and the received
information. However, if an informer’s intention is to harm
others, they may be subject to disciplinary punishment.

1. Soliciting or accepting benefits

Any employee (including the Directors, management
and all full-time, part-time, hourly-paid and temporary
workers) of the Group cannot, directly, indirectly or in
any manner, solicit or accept any form of benefits
from a third party, including, but not limited to,
money, gift, excessive entertainment and hospitality,
subsidized travel and accommodation, loan, pledging
as guarantor, extending preferential credit terms, fee,
reward, position, employment, contract, service,
privilege and exemption of all or part of the
responsibilities that ought to be fulfiled or do
anything that might be seen as bribery. The
employees should reject any direct or indirect
interests and benefits relating to the Group’s business
if such benefits would hamper their objectivity, or the
interests of the Group would be harmed or invaded,
or causing bias or misconduct.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B7. Policies on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering (Continued)

1.

Soliciting or accepting benefits (Continued)

In social events such as festivals, activities,
entertainments and other daily routine, refusing to
accept a modest gift may be considered impolite or
lack of social graces. With that in mind, the
employees may consider accepting benefits offered
on a voluntary basis under the following principles:

a. Receiving such benefits will not affect his or her
performance and decision;

b. He or she will not feel the need to reciprocate;
and

c. He or she can openly discuss the benefits.
If the Group finds out any employee’s inappropriate
behaviour of soliciting or accepting benefits, it will call

the police and terminate the labour relations with
such employee.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B7. Policies on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering (Continued)

2.

Providing benefits

In any case, any employee shall not provide bribe or
improper benefits to any person or organisation in
order to seek personal gain or group interests. If the
Group finds out any employee conducting bribery, it
will call the police and terminate the labour relations
with such employee.

Extortion

Making any unwarranted demand by threat in order to
seek benefits for oneself or for another person or with
intent to cause loss to another person shall be
considered as extortion. All employees shall not
participate in, assist in or cover up any kind of
extortion. If the Group finds out any employee
conducting extortion, it will call the police and
terminate the labour relations with such employee.

Fraud

Using any means of deception in order to seek
benefits for oneself or for another person or with
intent to cause loss to another person shall be
considered fraud. Common employee fraud includes
embezzlement, wage fraud and stealing company
assets. All employees shall not participate in, assist in
or cover up any fraud. If the Group finds out any
employee conducting fraud, it will call the police and
terminate the labour relations with such employee.

Money Laundering

Money laundering refers to an individual or institution
attempting to conceal the source of illicit money, or
makes such money looks legitimate in any way. The
Group will not tolerate any employee’s participation,
support, and assistance in any form of money
laundering.

72 EHER N ER KM AR 2 E WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED



RIE - HEREBIE Environmental, Social and Governance Report

EEEB )
B7. BHILEHER - BE - RERERED

B ()

5. FEEEE)
NAIBERAEBREREG /A -
BEEBETESNEBERITER
AR EREBEETNAE - R
RRAS/NETIERERRFEA
B RERGERBEIE RE
PEERAEBESR  AHKR
FEREEI - IS EE BN
AEMBHARIH5ESHH
B URBERERBEE .
EHWBER KRB o

RABEREFEBEINEF S
- REXFLE  BERR
EHE AR HNMRKEE
Al o

a. @EEFPE
EBABEFRBREPKL
AU BENRTEER
=2 L@ﬁﬁ%ﬁmi
ﬁ’%ﬁ%%@?%ﬁF
B B EPENNE
o BPRMAER IR
EREFFRFHFERE -
LEEEXEP&HIER
BMBEEFL - M EM
BRI TTIR A

b. RFEXZH
EBABNEABRE
RENEFENHENBRE
CEEFHNEENER
AR RBRZEEHEERS
TR TEBRN &R
FEEMER - TERERT
X“%dﬁ ERAREGE

RHEMER  FHRE -
RBUNBRMREELRA
VA B2 R 32 5 5 1B H) XA AT
HER  BREANER
BERS

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
B7. Policies on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering (Continued)

5.

Money Laundering (Continued)

The Company should establish an anti-money
laundering team. General manager should be the
team leader and responsible for organising the anti-
money laundering team. The team’s main
responsibilities include organising and implementing
anti-money laundering tasks, investigating reported
money laundering, arranging anti-money laundering
training, working with regulatory and judiciary
authorities to investigate suspicious transactions of
funds, as well as paying attention to requirements
and updates in anti-money laundering laws and
regulations.

Anti-money laundering procedures include identifying
clients, keeping transaction records, reporting and
following-up investigation of suspicious transactions,
and anti-money laundering training.

a. Identifying clients

In dealing with new clients, salespeople must
establish a high degree of anti-money laundering
awareness, through communication with
prospective clients to comprehensively grasp the
clients’ information, thereby running the first
check on the clients. After successfully securing
the client, regular contact is required to grasp
the clients’ updates. If an abnormal situation
occurs, the sales person needs to timely
communicate with the relevant departments.

b.  Keeping transaction records

Salespeople and accounting personnel should
keep customer identification information,
including register customer identification and
related information, keep all sorts of records and
information reflecting payment authority’s
customer identification process, and keep
transaction records such as each transaction’s
information, business voucher, ledger and
necessary documents and other relevant
information to reflect the details of each
transaction to ensure that each transaction is
traceable.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continuea)

B7. Policies on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering (Continued)

5.

Money Laundering (Continued)

C.

Reporting and following-up investigating of
suspicious transaction

For salespeople and accounting staff, should
they find out a suspicious transaction, they need
to report such transaction immediately to the
corporate headquarters’ anti-money laundering
team. The team analyses and investigates all
suspicious transactions reported, and if there are
reasonable grounds to believe that the
transaction or the customer has ties with money
laundering, terrorism and other criminal
activities, relevant authorities including the
HKSAR Government JFIU should be notified.

Anti-money laundering training

All employees should attend anti-money
laundering training at least once a year. The
training includes learning the harmful effects of
money laundering, anti-money laundering
regulations, the role of the employees in anti-
money laundering, how to identify suspicious
transactions, ways to report suspicious
transactions, and the consequences if one fails
to comply with anti-money laundering
regulations.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
During the Year, the Group has complied with
the Anti-money Laundering Law of the PRC (/4
#= A RAME & L EX), the Criminal Law of the
PRC (FEARHKMEMNE), the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRC (FZEA R HEME K
TNEE#FE) and other relevant laws and
regulations on bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.
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COMMUNITY

B8. Policies on community engagement to understand the

needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration
the communities’ interests

For the Group’s long-term development, community
participation is important. We are committed to promoting
the development and construction activities of the
in which we operate. We benefit the
community through a variety of actions, such as
investment and contributing money, time, products,

influence, management knowledge and other

community

services,
resources.

We participate in community building through three main
ways:

1. Organise, facilitate and support the staff to take part
in volunteer services, such as regularly visiting people
who need help,
disadvantaged groups and holding Blood Donation
Day.

arranging outdoor activities for

2. By means of donation, we donate money, goods or
services directly supporting or funding projects of
various social service agencies. In addition to
donation itself, we also appeal to the Company’s
stakeholders (including the employees and customers)
to donate.

3. We endeavour to provide employment opportunities to
the disadvantaged and create a win-win situation,
such as hiring the disabled people who have
completed retraining courses, giving priority to
purchasing from the suppliers who hire the disabled
people, or participating in a variety of mentorship
programs.
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The Group maintains an effective environmental management
system which was awarded an 1SO14001: 2004 certificate by
Beijing ZhongDaHuaYuan Certification Center on 14 July 2010.
Furthermore, it has designed, established and implemented an
updated version of the QE management system in accordance
with 1SO14001:2015 in the second half of 2016. This updated
system passed the examination and evaluation of
ZhongDaHuaYuan Certification Center (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. and
was awarded a Certificate of Environmental Management
System Certification* (RIFEEE KR FF E) (Certificate No.:
02016E30584R2M) by Beijing ZhongDaHuaYuan Certification
Center on 3 August 2017. This certificate confirmed that the
environmental management system of both the Group’s
industrial automatic integrated equipment design and
manufacturing business and general machinery components and
parts processing business complies with the Requirements and
a Practical Guide for an Environmental Management System* (3&
BEEERXERLFERAER) (GB/T24001-2016/1SO14001:2015).

The Group strictly controls the emissions of waste and
greenhouse gas from its equipment production processes. It
also ensures that all emissions conform to the environmental
quality standards stipulated by the local governments of the
regions where the Group operates. Relevant laws, regulations
and rules include but are not limited to the PRC Environmental
Protection Law, the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Cap. 354 of the laws of Hong Kong) and Product
Eco-responsibility Ordinance (Cap. 603 of the laws of Hong
Kong).
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Air Pollutants

Air pollutants also come from vehicles and mainly include
nitrogen oxides (NO,), sulphur oxides (SO,) and respirable
suspended particles (RSP) (also known as particulate matter
(PM)). Relevant data for the year ended 31 December 2017
were as follows:

# F2017512A318
IFEE

Year ended

31 December 2017

50,229.53 (%)
50,229.53 (grammes)
898.59 (7%,)

898.59 (grammes)
3,698.29 (57)
3,698.29 (grammes)
54,826.41(5%)
54,826.41 (grammes)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Greenhouse gas comes from all sorts of daily activities, such as
the use of electricity, water and gas as well as driving. Total
greenhouse gas emissions include carbon dioxide and other
greenhouse gases, such as methane (CH,) and nitrous oxide
(N,Q). The increase in greenhouse gas emission is one of the
major causes of global warming. In particular, carbon dioxide is
the principal greenhouse gas emitted from human activities. The
Group strives to reduce burning and improve energy and
resource use efficiency in its daily operation so as to manage its
greenhouse gas emissions.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Continued)
Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Continued)

Greenhouse gas emissions for the year ended 31 December
2017 were as follows:

# F2017512A318
IFEE

Year ended

31 December 2017

HABEMRERE B Z BN 165,582.39 (F 7%.)
Direct emissions from the combustion of fuels in motor vehicles 165,582.39 (kilogrammes)
KEBEHAFIEEE JFTSI B A B PR 307,512.75(F7=)
Indirect emissions from electricity purchased from power companies 307,512.75 (kilogrammes)
HESEMAMEENHMEHER 2,515.2(F5)
Indirect emissions due to disposal of paper waste 2,515.2 (kilogrammes)
15K R IR A A B 12 )5 /K B 51 BUAY Al 2 HE B 6,105.68 (F52)
Indirect emissions due to sewage processing by sewage processing companies 6,105.68 (kilogrammes)

BEEREBABENE

Greenhouse gas emissions in total
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481,716.02(T %)
481,716.02 (kilogrammes)

Effluents Management

The production workshops of the Group do not require water
supply. The Group only produces domestic sewage that is
transmitted to 5 FIL/KEIEBAHR AR for unified treatment
through sewage pipeline. The domestic sewage of the Group is
tested by %5 2 K8 RIRITH A B R A7) every year. For the
year ended 31 December 2017, the potential of hydrogen (pH),
chemical oxygen demand (COD) and biochemical oxygen
demand (BOD) of the domestic sewage were all below required
limits.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (continued)
Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste

In addition to the emissions of air pollutants and greenhouse
gas, the Group also produces hazardous waste from using paint
in its spraying and painting processes. The intensity of
hazardous waste produced for the year ended 31 December
2017 was 0.0397.

The Group engaged M EZ Y EREAMR AR to transport
and handle its domestic waste. For the year ended 31
December 2017, the impact on the environment was negligible
as 1,040 bins of waste in total were transported and handled
and the intensity of non-hazardous waste produced was 3.9.

The Group is wholly committed to the policies relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste as set out in
this ESG report in the annual report in order to mitigate such
pollution.

The information on hazardous and non-hazardous waste for the
year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows:

#HZE2017F12A3180
IFEE

Year ended
31 December 2017

22.60 (1)
22.60 (tonnes)
15.60 (1)
15.60 (tonnes)

Indirect Energy and Water Consumption in Total

The daily indirect energy consumption of the Group mainly
comes from purchased electricity. For the year ended 31
December 2017, the intensity of energy consumption was
122,028.87.

The total water consumption of the Group mainly consists of
domestic sewage. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
intensity of water consumption was 2,180.6.

The Group enjoys stable water supply as it purchases water
from Wuxi Waterworks Co., Ltd* (E$H T EK/KER AT, a

sizeable state-owned enterprise.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Continued)
Packaging Material Used for Finished Products

The Group is wholly committed to the policies on the efficient
use of resources as set out in this ESG report in the annual
report in order to reduce the consumption of energy and water.

The Group properly packs its products according to the
requirements of the clients before delivery so as to prevent
damage during the transportation. For the Year, the types and
total packaging material used were as follows:

HBE2017F12A31H L EE

Year ended
31 December 2017

223.89 (M)
223.89 (tonnes)
0.96 ()

0.96 (tonne)

For the Year, the intensity of packaging material used was 0.40.

The daily operation of the Group does not have material impact
on the environment and natural resources The Group will
continue to be wholly committed to the policies on minimising
its significant impact on the environment and natural resources
as set out in this ESG report in the annual report in order to
safeguard the environment and natural resources.

* For identification purposes only
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The Directors are pleased to present this report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Year.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the PRC and has its
principal place of business in Hong Kong at 33rd Floor, Shui On
Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Group’s
registered office and its principal place of business in the PRC
are situated at 1
Development Zone, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

Yanxin Road East, Huishan Economic

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are research and
development, design, equipment supply,
installation, testing, repair and maintenance of production lines
for manufacturing steel wire products in the PRC. The principal
activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

manufacture,

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the
sections of Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Environmental, Social and Governance Report, Five-
year Financial Summary of this annual report and the
paragraphs below.

The Group complies with the requirements under the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the laws of Hong Kong), the
Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.
571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) for the disclosure of
information and corporate governance. No important event
affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the financial
year to the date of this annual report.
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KEY RISK FACTORS

Set out below are the key risks and uncertainties facing the
Group.

Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is subject to government
policy, and relevant regulations and guidelines established by
the regulatory authorities. Failure to comply with the rules and
requirements may lead to penalties, amendments or suspension
of the business operation by the authorities. The Group closely
monitors changes in government policies, regulations and
markets as well as conducting studies to assess the impact of
such changes.

Third-Party Risks

The Group has been relying on third-party service providers in
some parts of its business to improve performance and
efficiency of the Group. While gaining the benefits from external
service providers, the management
operational dependency may pose a threat of vulnerability to
unexpected poor or lapses in service including
damage, business disruption and monetary losses. To address
such uncertainties, the Group engages only reputable third-
party service providers and closely monitors their performance.

realises that such

reputation

For other risks and uncertainties facing the Group, please refer
to the prospectus of the Company dated 30 October 2014.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognises the accomplishment of the employees by
providing comprehensive benefit package, career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual
needs. The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all
employees. No strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace

accidents are found in the Year.

The Group places great emphasis on working relationships with
suppliers to meet our customers’ needs in an effective and
efficient manner. Our departments work closely with our
suppliers to make sure the tendering and procurement process
is conducted in an open, fair and just manner. The Group’s
requirements and standards are also well-communicated to
suppliers before the commencement of a project.
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The Group values the views and opinions of all customers
through various means and channels, including usage of
business intelligence to understand customer trends and needs
and regular analysis on customer feedback. The Group also
conducts comprehensive tests and checks to ensure that only
quality products and services are offered to the customers.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, aggregate sales to the Group’s largest and five
largest customers accounted for 25.9% (2016: 22.4%) and
77.8% (2016: 76.3%), respectively, of the Group’s total revenue
for the Year.

During the Year, aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest
and five largest suppliers accounted for 16.2% (2016: 10.3%)
and 36.1% (2016: 37.4%), respectively, of the Group’s total
purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
of the Company (who or which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares)
had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers, raw
material suppliers and subcontractors during the Year.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the latest five financial years is set out on page 176
of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at
that date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 103 to 175 of this annual report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group performance during the
Year and material factors underlying its results and financial
position are set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis
section of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out
consolidated financial statements.

in note 14 to the
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RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the distributable reserves of the
Company were RMB443.2 million (2016: RMB425.0 million).

DIVIDEND

For the Year, the Board has proposed a final dividend of
RMBO0.05 per share (before tax) totalling RMB6.4 million (before
tax), subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company at
AGM. The final dividend, if approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the AGM, will be paid to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appeared on the register of members
of the Company on Wednesday, 20 June 2018. Dividends
payable to the holders of the Company’s domestic shares shall
be paid in RMB, whereas dividends payable to the holders of
the Company’s H shares shall be paid in Hong Kong dollars.
Dividends on H share are also subject to PRC Withholding
Income Tax. The final dividend will be payable on or around
Monday, 16 July 2018 and a detailed plan of distribution is set
out in the circular of the Company dated 23 April 2018.

TAX REDUCTION AND EXEMPTION (FOR H
SHAREHOLDERS)

Non-resident enterprise shareholders

Pursuant to the enterprise income tax law of the PRC and its
implementation rules, which came into force on 1 January 2008
and other relevant rules, where the Company distributes the
proposed 2017 final dividend to non-resident enterprise
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
for H Shares of the Company, it is required to withhold
enterprise income tax at the rate of 10%. Any H Shares
registered in the name of non-individual registered shareholders,
including HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees, trustees or
other organizations or groups, will be treated as Shares being
held by non-resident enterprise shareholders, and consequently
will be subject to the withholding of the enterprise income tax.
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Non-resident individual shareholders

According to regulations by the state administration of taxation
(Guo Shui Han [2011] No. 348) and laws and
regulations, if the individual H Share shareholders are residents
of Hong Kong or Macau or those countries which have entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of
10%, the Company will finally withhold and pay individual
income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of these shareholders.
If the individual H Share shareholders are residents of those
countries which have entered into a tax treaty with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of less than 10%, the Company
will make applications on their behalf to seek entitlement of the
relevant agreed preferential treatments pursuant to the relevant
tax treaty. If the individual H Share shareholders are residents of
those countries which have entered into a tax treaty with the
PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of more than 10% but less
than 20%, the Company will withhold and pay individual income
tax at the actual tax rate stipulated in the relevant tax treaty. If
the individual H Share shareholders are residents of those
countries which have entered into a tax treaty with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of 20%, or those countries which
have not entered into any tax treaties with the PRC, or under
any other circumstances, the Company will withhold and pay
individual income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf of these
shareholders.

relevant

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 9 May 2018 to Friday, 8 June 2018, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. The holders of shares whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, 8 June 2018 will
be entitled to attend and vote at the AGM and the class
meetings of the Company for the holders of H shares and
domestic shares of the Company to be held on Friday, 8 June
2018 (the “Class Meetings”). In order to be qualified to attend
and vote at the AGM and the Class Meetings, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the H Share Registrar of the Company, Union
Registrars Limited at Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two Chinachem
Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong (in
respect of H shares), or to the Company’s registered office in
the PRC at 1 Yanxin Road East, Huishan Economic
Development Zone, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, the PRC (in respect
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of Domestic shares) no later than 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 8 May
2018.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 14 June 2018 to Wednesday, 20 June 2018, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to be qualified for receiving the final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the H Share Registrar of the Company, Union
Registrars Limited at Suites 3301-04, 33/F.,, Two Chinachem
Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong (in
respect of H shares), or to the Company’s registered office in
the PRC at 1 Yanxin Road East,
Development Zone, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, the PRC (in respect
of Domestic shares) no later than 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 13
June 2018.

Huishan Economic

BANK BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no bank borrowings
(2016: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
minimum public float under the Listing Rules for the Year and
up to the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the
PRC, the Company is not subject to any pre-emptive rights
requiring it to propose new issues to its existing shareholders in
proportion to their shareholdings.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as the disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The following table sets forth information concerning the
Directors and supervisors of the Company for the year ended

#a F
Name Age
=

Directors

oK 2 M 5E A4 45
Mr. ZHANG Degang

Rimoa kL 48
Mr. ZHANG Degiang

REFELL 55
Ms. ZHANG Jinghua

=%t 50
Mr. GAO Feng

G e 52
Mr. LIU Chaojian

mEFEE 54
Mr. GAO Fuping

AEREE 46
Mr. HO Yuk Ming, Hugo
ZimlxE 54
Mr. PENG Jiashan

BEXL 48
Ms. WEI Yi

GRELL 36

Ms. YANG Jinghua

ARBICEEEBIIFATESRE L
MARAEBERBEEFBIERLENFE
BYIERITEFRY

BRE URSEE

31 December 2017.

B L EZEHH
Position Appointment Date
HTEERTIRE 20124 7H24H
Executive Director and Chairman 24 July 2012
HITEERALE 20127 A24H
Executive Director and general manager 24 July 2012
FHITER 201558 A28H
Non-executive Director 28 August 2015
FRTES 20124 7H24H
Non-executive Director 24 July 2012
BUFRTES 20124 7H24H
Independent non-executive Director 24 July 2012
BUFRTES 20134 8A11H
Independent non-executive Director 11 August 2013
BUFRTES 20134 8A11H
Independent non-executive Director 11 August 2013
EE 201458A15H
Supervisor 15 August 2014
E=Z 201458 A15H
Supervisor 15 August 2014
EERATNEB LR 20124 7H24H
Supervisor and personnel and general affairs manager 24 July 2012

executive Directors, an annual
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
confirmation of their

B MARE]

considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors
are independent of the Company.
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¥R & Report of the Directors

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors, supervisors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 19 to 29 of
this annual report.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

Except Ms. Zhang Jinghua’s service contract for an
appointment term commencing on 28 August 2015 and expiring
upon the end of the second session of the Board, each of the
Directors and supervisors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company on 24 October 2014 and 20
October 2014, respectively. Each of their service contracts is for
an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or supervisors
of the Company has or is proposed to have a service contract
with any member of the Group which is not determinable by
any member of the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and supervisors of
the Company are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the remuneration of the five highest paid employees
are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or in existence during the Year.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such indemnity provisions for the benefit
of the Directors in force
throughout the Year.

is currently in force and was

DONATIONS
No donation was made during the Years and 2016.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of the
Directors, supervisors and the chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which will have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which he/she was
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which will be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register referred to therein or which will be
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, will be as follows:

(i) Interests of the Directors in the shares of the

EEnE

Name of Director

SR AE M5 A
Mr. Zhang Degang

REBGREE
Mr. Zhang Degiang

REEXLL
Ms. Zhang Jinghua

B 43 £ 5

Class of shares

Domestic Shares

Domestic Shares

Domestic Shares

Domestic Shares
Domestic Shares

Domestic Shares

Domestic Shares

Domestic Shares

Company
HHERERN SEBTEX
& N:ok ¥ ) BENELY
=Ry ALk T4 e
Approximate Approximate
percentage in percentage in
k& E the relevant the total
Number of H&HMH class of share issued share
shares Nature of interest capital®Note ) capitalNote )
43,221,504 ERBEAA 45.02% 33.77%
Beneficial owner
34,010,496  HHEM A THFERE O R0 35.43% 26.57%
Interest held jointly with another
person (Note 2)
4,416,000 PR PE A E AR TR0 4.60% 3.45%
Interest in controlled
corporation Mot 3
29,983,104 EnBEAA 31.23% 23.42%
Beneficial owner
47,248,896 EEE A A T H[FEFA a9 @12 49.22% 36.92%
Interest held jointly with another
person (Nete 2
4,416,000 R X EHEE R 4.60% 3.45%
Interest in controlled
corporation Nete 3
4,027,392  Em#EAA 4.20% 3.15%
Beneficial owner
77620608  HEHM A THERFERERNE 80.85% 60.64%

Interest held jointly with another
person (Nete 2

90 FEHRDNENERHER 2T WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED



BEEZIRE Report of the Directors

1) BREFEUARTR2017F12 A1 &
174 #£128,000,000 L i@k B EE - &
£ $596,000,0000% A & % 32,000,000
fEHA% ©

2 RERAILEE  REREERRHELLA
—BITBHAL  AHBEESERRBRE
EZEMBEROPEAES - RIEEHA
20134 7A26H M) — BT EN 1 i - SRAE M
Sl RERLAENRFELLZAER
HEE=MTIER 200954 A17 BRI #E -
HR-BITEREERAEERKE AR R
BAER SEEEEHLNRERE B
MR T -

@) REREERREREESEDIERE
ErxERAB)(ERDOMAEBE
BA - B R BRIERFT R PR
Rz o

Br XX BEAESN - R2017F12A318 - #f
BARNRES  EERERTBRABRK
ARl EERAREE (TR AEHF LB
BIEHEXVER) AR D - B R D&
BHREBRBESRAEERAEXVESE
785 BB A A& AN R) R Bt 22 B B 1 {A] 42
mERE (BERBEEFREKRIIEH
X HEEWEEIR BHEB R EZRIOAX
B) A BERARTREBEZSF K BHER
BIEE3521& BT B M & i A A &5 sk
KA HBBREETFAIESITAMERAA
KREE R TR IR E ©

FERFRHERR X

BEEMA - R20175412A318 » M EE
AT EZB (KRB EE &EaTHA
BREERINKRARARG - BEKRH
FEREFEBEI R AXEEEER
BESFRHEEGEXVEEE2RID K
NEARARAHEBEXDERBERES R
HEKPIEI6IRBEFENELMOER
FIRE o

(1) The calculation is based on the total number of 128,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2017, which
comprised 96,000,000 domestic shares and 32,000,000 H shares.

2 Mr. Zhang Degang, Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua are
persons acting in concert and accordingly each of them is deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by each other. By the Acting in
Concert Agreement dated 26 July 2013, each of Mr. Zhang Degang,
Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua confirmed that they have
exercised their voting rights at the meetings of the shareholders and/or
directors of the members of the Group in unanimity since the
establishment of Sanzhi Gongkong on 17 April 2009, and will continue
to do so.

3) Mr. Zhang Degang and Mr. Zhang Degiang are two of the general
partners of MEHIEFRIEECZE(BRAE) (Wuxi Shunxin Investment
Enterprise (Limited Partnership)®) (“Shunxin”) and are therefore deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by Shunxin.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors, supervisors and the chief executive of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2017, no
persons or corporations (other then the Directors,
executive or supervisors of the Company) had or deemed or
taken to have an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336
of the SFO.

chief

—Z -t FE#HRE ANNUAL REPORT 2017

91



= =2 = Report of the Directors

EERESENEERS RHH
XM ER

RERKEATMAEE  SHEHARE]
HEMHMEARKARMBRARRETR
AR BEARBEFTLEFTHHE MR
EERERRHERNETRAE AL
WHEANEEXBHBENEARS - LH=X

BH -

EXEHN

FA - ARRBE SCEAT (A B QBB R R
NEIHEE B AR ZERERR(EE
RETRADITZERERGL - kT
PR BCR B B AR (T B AR A A AR S EAE
B AR REENRBITLEFANERS
#) o BEEANR A B RETSLAE (] 2 BEA R ZE
SR ERELMABE -

MEER

FR ARAEFE BEEERREREEERA
MEFZHEAMEREEEAQR REEM
GIEPNCIEE S/ g e eI S
MEMEHRER  TERENEEFE
EREMMEER -

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries or its parent company was
a party, and in which a Director or supervisor of the Company
or an entity connected with any of them had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly subsisted at the end of the Year or
at any time during the Year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

During the Year, there had been no contract of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, nor any contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries. None of the shareholders of the Company entered
into any arrangement to waive or agree to waive any dividend.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors, the controlling shareholders of the
Company and their respective close associates had any
business or interest that competes or may compete with the
business of the Company or any of its subsidiaries nor had any
other conflicts of interest with the Group during the Year.
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COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETE
UNDERTAKING

Each of Mr. Zhang Degang, Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang
Jinghua (the controlling shareholders (within the meaning of the
Listing Rules) of the Company) has given an annual declaration
to the Company confirming that he/she has complied with the
non-compete undertakings given by them to the Company
under the deed of non-competition made on 11 March 2014 in
favour of the Company. The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and
enforcement of the non-compete undertakings and confirmed
that all the undertakings thereunder have been complied with
during the Year.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate granted to any Director
or supervisors of the Company, or were such rights exercised
by them, or was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors or supervisors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of the Company or any other body
corporate.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes organised by the PRC municipal and provincial
government authorities for the Group’s eligible employees in the
PRC. Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 9
to the consolidated financial statements.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company complied with all code provisions of the CG
Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout
the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions during the Year are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements and these
transactions do not fall under the definition of connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction of the Listing
Rules.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There was no other transactions which constituted connected
transaction(s) or continuing connected transaction(s) of the
Company during the Year.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the Year, the Company was not engaged in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of
material importance is known to the Directors to be pending or
threatened against the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed auditing, financial reporting
systems, risk management and internal control systems, and
has reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial results for the
Year.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who shall retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board

BERNERRBEBARAT

(Wuxi Sunlit Science and Technology Company Limited*)
Zhang Degang

Chairman

Jiangsu, the PRC, 29 March 2018

*

For identification purposes only
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To the Shareholders of Wuxi Sunlit Science and
Technology Company Limited

(@ joint stock company incorporated in People’s Republic of
China with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Wuxi Sunlit Science
and Technology Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 103 to 175, which
comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment
of trade receivables.
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Impairment of trade receivables
FE2HEE M HRERM 410 [BS & 5t (45T
RBERI R F19[E 5 I Hth & Y 5k | -
Refer to note 4.1(b) “Critical accounting

estimates and assumptions” and note 19

“Trade and other receivables” to the
consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2017, the trade
receivables amounted to RMB170.0 million and
provision amounted to RMB72.5 million,
resulting in the net carrying amount of
RMB97.5 million and representing 13.2% of the
Group’s total assets as at 31 December 2017.

HMETTH RRARERERNTHESRE
WK TRRUE B (E i T K 8 HI -
We focused on this area because management
made significant judgement in assessment of
impairment of trade receivables.

H T E R E IR B TEVE RIS A ﬁﬁ Z%
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The judgement was based on the individual
credit evaluations performed by the management.
These evaluations focused on the customer’s
past repayment history, current operation status,
current repayment capabilities and current
cooperation relationship.

B E T EREARENEIR
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BMREERERFT
AT :

We obtained the assessment of impairment of trade
receivables from the management and performed the
following procedures on a sampling basis:

BB RBEREN AL MEETT

1) RIS E D W R IE BR e A L RO SERE T
1)  Tested the accuracy of the aging profile of trade
receivables;

2) BEREPHNELABWHEERBE(WVAE)ETHER:
2)  Examined the historical settlement from the customers
and compared those to repayment agreements, if any;

3 BEEPHNHEEERBR
3) Examined the subsequent settlement from the
customers;

4) WMRLRAGER  UBANEERBRAHELLSEMN
AREANEREENERENCENEZR K

4)  Performed research on public available information to
identify any inconsistency with the information
management used in the assessment of the
customers’ operation status and current repayment
capabilities; and

5 BEARTHKERITEETFERERER
ZEERNEEBRER -

5)  Examined the unfinished contracts and confirmed the
contract terms with customers to assess the current
cooperation relationship with them.

PARY fh £ 15

ERPMETH LR RARGENERE KR A B
JE 1T (4 B 5 FE YRR TR R (B IR BT (E B9 ) i B 3R 18 S #F o
Based on above procedures performed and the evidence
obtained, we considered that the judgement made by the
management in assessment of the impairment of trade
receivables was supportable.
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OTHER INFORMATION
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other

information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

RPMREZZESRAT (HPEE)FHE
METEHE SELHE EXEFER
% BREPIERE D E A A ERE
B E R E A BREE -

BPERAEZZESRIBH - SARM
ENGARBYEMNHBERERELR
WP BE AR BEMKREREF
ERMBLIENRMBREEMEMSEIE -
Ko (4n3E F) 16 BE B B #8451

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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HEEZZESBBNERT - RIFIHE
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ERBMmBEPRAELEEER  RIEE
BERTATAFARBEELER  NER
mMERNERT  WRE B TEAERII®R
ERABRFHEMNAERKRBRBE
ERRARANE - RAAORETERERSHAE
BHEA -

]
&)

[

HERBIZBMBENRITEEEHBA
EEHE

g

BERKESMEHR
HEGETHED

H7B - 201853 H29H

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Pang, Ho Yin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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Consolidated Income Statement

(BRIERBEH  BAIMEBBAUARE TTIIR)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

YA
3HE AN

EF

HERX
TR R X
H A
Hit st — F8

EEFR

FBA
FBFRX

FMBWA — F8

B P 1% i 50 FUE

FREB (%), %

FATREEGEEAFE

FRFAFIRFRELESRER
(MERARETIIFR)

— EAREE

FNOEITSA MM E B ALR S F B WK

— 55 -

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Other income
Other gains — net

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance expense

Finance income — net

Profit before income tax

Income tax (expense)/credit

Profit for the year attributable
to shareholders of the

Company

Earnings per share

attributable to shareholders
of the Company for the year
(expressed in RMB per

share)
— Basic and diluted

B E
Note

0 N O O

10
10

1

12

HE12A31BILEE
Year ended 31 December

20174 20164F
2017 2016
160,584 112,284
(105,663) (79,350)
54,921 32,934
(4,885) (4,332)
(17,139) (19,850)
522 1,871
5,097 3,660
38,516 14,283
3,510 1,577
(1,371) —
2,139 1,577
40,655 15,860
(7,200) 12,748
33,455 28,608
0.26 0.22

consolidated financial statements.
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MOEBRNAE
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

(RIESHEER - TAFAHAEHUAREFTLIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B F12A31ALEE
Year ended 31 December

2017% 20164

2017 2016

P FI B Profit for the year 33,455 28,608

Hih 2wz Other comprehensive income - =
AATIBREEEERNZTILE Total comprehensive income for

FEE] the year attributable to
shareholders of the Company 33,455 28,608

FMORITSEMM AR EMBHRER The notes on pages 110 to 175 are an integral part of these

—Zp e consolidated financial statements.

1 04 FEHRNENERHBER AT WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED



OB EBRR
Consolidated Balance Sheet
(RIESHFEH - TAIFMBHEHUARETFTLIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

®12831H
As at 31 December
B 7E 20174 20164
Note 2017 2016
BE ASSETS
EREBEE Non-current assets
=+ Mo A AE Land use rights 13 24,274 25,335
Y BENRERE Property, plant and equipment 14 101,993 109,328
KEME Investment properties 15 21,725 20,934
BREE Intangible assets 16 19 62
%’%Vﬂﬁl £ Q) Trade receivables 19 - 15,922
IR FT1SR ﬁ? ek Deferred income tax assets
— net 20 17,323 24,175
165,334 195,756
RENEE Current assets
FE Inventories 21 92,608 45,924
TEAT FOIR Prepayments 23 775 2,052
B 5 & H A W RIE Trade and other receivables 19 176,718 155,353
BAFEFTAEZE Financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit or loss 22 77,450 30,248
AR HE e Restricted cash 24 49,787 13,096
TEHTF K Time deposits 24 105,763 =
Be B+ EEER Cash and cash equivalents 24 71,912 193,562
575,013 440,435
HBEE Total assets 740,347 636,191
S EQUITY
[i% Z< Share capital 25 128,000 128,000
B& 17 % B Share premium 25 311,464 311,464
(Fges Reserves 27 57,339 56,245
RE &N Retained earnings 26 93,328 67,367
RS Total equity 590,131 563,076
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MmEeBEEBER Consolidated Balance Sheet
(BrIER B - TAIFTA SFEHUARE FL5/R)  (Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

»12A31H
As at 31 December
M 5 20174 20164
Note 2017 2016
BfE LIABILITIES
RBHERE Current liabilities
B 5 & H M ERRIE Trade and other payables 28 92,418 48,349
AR P K IE Advances from customers 57,606 24,412
EHMEHMEE Current income tax liabilities 192 354
150,216 73,115
ERHER Non-current liabilities - —
HERE Total liabilities 150,216 73,115
HEZSRER Total equity and liabilities 740,347 636,191

FNORITEEMMIsE ARG E M B HRERN The notes on pages 110 to 175 are an integral part of these
— &5 e consolidated financial statements.

F103ENTSE AR & M 5 Ik 2 N20184F The consolidated financial statements on pages 103 to 175
SH20BEEESH A WAHUATALTR were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2018
~eE: and were signed on its behalf by:

EFEHE EEUE Name of Director Name of Director
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GOERBEaE
Consohdated Statement of Changes in Equity

(BRIESHFEH - TAFMBHBEHUARETFTLIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B & kx BROHE it REEA st
Share Share Retained
Note capital premium Reserves earnings Total

®2016FE1A1H B 4 63 Balance at 1 January 2016 55,463 39,541 534,468
2mEi Comprehensive income

F R FE Profit for the year = 28,608 28,608
2HEWEEE Total comprehensive income — 28,608 28,608
HEAANXS Transaction with owners

HEETTIHES Transfer to safety fund 782 (782) —
BEHEAANXSEE Total transactions with owners 782 (782) -
220165 12H31H 488 Balance at 31 December 2016 56,245 67,367 563,076
2mlkE Comprehensive income

FRFE Profit for the year - 33,455 33,455
2EKSEE Total comprehensive income - - - 33,455 33,455
BEEAANXS Transaction with owners

HEERIES Transfer to safety fund 27(b) - - 1,094 (1,094) -
B AR S Dividend paid - - - (6,400) (6,400)
BEBEAANXSEE Total transactions with owners - - 1,094 (7,494) (6,400)
#2017 128319 % 8%  Balance at 31 December 2017 128,000 311,464 57,339 93,328 590,131

FUHORI7T5EMMIE ARG A VB RED The notes on pages 110 to 175 are an integral part of these
— & e consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(BRIEZB R BRIFA BB UAARE T LI

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

EETPHRERE
LEMBRE
ENFAFEH

RERBDMERE FHE

RATIHRERE

BEWE BERERENM
BIVEE

HEME BMEMZRER
T AR AT S R

BERAFEAABZD
HERQFEFABRD
TMEEMSHREA

B IR HI3R £ 18 0
5E 23 17 SRIE A0

REZHFAARESFR

METHHRERE

EANE@5)

M 5
Note

Cash flows from operating
activities

Cash generated from operations  30(a)

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing
activities

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment and intangible
assets

Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment
and land use right 30(b)

Purchase of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Increase in restricted cash

Increase in time deposits

Net cash used in investing
activities

Cash flows from financing
activities
Dividends paid 29

1 08 FEHRNENERHBER AT WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

H=12A31HILLE£E
Year ended 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
75,090 70,561
(510) (1,399)
74,580 69,162
(3,913) (18,400)
13 1
(496,800) (494,389)
454,695 467,427
(36,691) (40)
(105,763) =
(188,459) (45,401)
(6,400) =



mETW LR EBR Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(RIESHFEH - TAIFMBHEHUARETFTLIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

HE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
B = 20174 20164
Note 2017 2016
He&RFE£EEER Net (decrease)/increase in
FORY), cash and cash equivalents (120,279) 23,761
IEEXZETE Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes (1,371) —
FYVNRERELEEIERH Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 193,562 169,801
FRMWRERHEZEEIEH Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 71,912 193,562

F10RIT5EM M R AR E M mEK A The notes on pages 110 to 175 are an integral part of these
— &5 e consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BRIEZB R - BRIFA BHBAARE TL37R)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

1 FEREH—REH

EHENEMBBOHERAR (ARE])
KREKBAR (REIANEE])WEBZEK
REENHEMGEERN—RIIRE

ANNF AR2006FE3A21BEREARH
MBE(PHDFMRINEREE QA -
M201267H248 - AARRIEHBAEEE
BREHRBHABRDERRDE c NARA
A EEM I AR RIS EHEL
A7 R B T BT R 15 o

R2014F 11 A8 » KR FIRR DR BB B
ERGFBERAT (BT ER LT -

BREERIN  AESMBHRREARE
T2 -

ARATESESEEMN2018E3H29H #it & F
BAREAETERE -

2 EXEBREME

BEARAVBEREAERANEESS
BERENR TN > R BEAN  ZFBXR
RIEE2RFEERER -

21 REEE
AEBOGAEM BRI IBREBEMEEHA
MEBEBMBREERNRR - &6 M B R
RERBELRAEBHRE  IRIZA
FEFABZHNSHEE(RAFESR)
fEHEET

1 GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

Wuxi Sunlit Science and Technology Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of a range of
equipment for steel wire production lines.

The Company was incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) as a limited liability company on 21 March
2006. The Company was converted into a joint stock company
with limited liabilities under relevant PRC laws and regulations
on 24 July 2012. The address of the Company’s registered
office is 1 Yanxin Road East, Huishan Economic Development
Zone, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, PRC.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 11 November 2014.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi thousands (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 29 March
2018.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

1 1 O EIHE N ER KM AR 2 8 WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED



%4 B 7% 3R = MY 3F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BRIESBER  BRIMAKBAARE FLIR)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 EXEBEREBE®

21 EREEGE)
RENTEB BB RELENNP B R
AERETHERE G THREEEE
EEAAEENE A RRBREFIELH
B o FhmEHE R E RN EE KRR
Rt G e B RRTEEANEE
PP R4 3 5% -

(a) KEEETIRAHEE G153
AEBEREMNTINAEREB2017F1 71
BRI M B B 8 A A B Y& 2k

1| e E&E
EBQTELFI2 RATEEERR
SR (15 30 EERIBEE

ERSHENETR HESE

(1&2%)

EAVBREEL BREREMERD
125 (15 2%) P 7

BR A b it 2 B ) 48 A0 K B ) 3K AE T 58
CHEYBEATE  MBRKRPHEE
REENEEITK -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with

HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.

It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the

process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas

involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas

where assumptions and estimates are significant to the

consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) Amendments to standards adopted by the Group
The Group had adopted the following amendments to standards

are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on 1
January 2017:

Standards Subject of amendment

HKAS 12 (Amendment) Recognition of deferred tax
assets for unrealized losses

HKAS 7 (Amendment) Disclosure initiative

Disclosure of interest in other

entities

HKFRS 12 (Amendment)

The adoptions of the above amendments to standards did not
have significant impact on the current period or any prior
periods and is not likely to affect future periods.

—Z -t FEE#HRE ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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72 & B 7% 3R 3= MY 2 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BRIEZB R - BRIFA BHBAARE TL37R)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 EXEFBEHEE®

21 REEEH)

(b) [ EFRANEI AT E R LI R E R 59 15
XREE

T3 T ER A REAMER RZER

H2017F1A1ERBRO P REEE BHE

MAED  BREAEERF RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments and interpretations
to standards not yet adopted

The following new standards and amendments and

interpretation to standards have been issued but are not

effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2017 and

112 smsmrs

A 2B

Standards/Interpretation

BB 1 & R F155%
HKFRS 15

M| EEFNR
HKFRS 9

BB MK s ER F25R
(1B %)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

BB MK s ER F45%
(&%)
HKFRS 4 (Amendment)

8 g st £ R F285 (B2
HKAS 28 (Amendment)

HE gt £ R F4058 (&2
HKAS 40 (Amendment)

BEERMEHRERE
ZB2)RBE2H
HK(FRIC) 22

B8 (B2 57 7%
RE %‘) %%
HK (IFRIC) 2

BB B SRR F165
HKFRS 16

BB WS R F1058 &
& g R F285%
(1B %0

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendment)

%

?d*gg

H
=]
235

/I]]]D o

N

have not been early adopted by the Group:

R ey EE

Subject of standards/amendment

wP&aRMA
Revenue from Contracts with Customers

@ TE
Financial Instruments

AN ZZH DR RGE

Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

REERIMN BBV BEREENZ4RREBE
Fﬁﬁ BERMBHREEANFREeH T A
Insurance Contracts “Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts”

REERBIRAELENRE

Investments in associates and joint ventures

BREREDE

Transfers of investment property

SNEE R 5 Je TR UL TR $HB

N

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

PIT 15 751 B 32 O 1 E 1

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

HE

Leases

WEFHEBRE AR NEGECERANEELE
A

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

B IR 9 B PR A B WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

RT3 B8
ZERBMEEEN
Effective for

annual years
beginning on or after

20181 H1H
1 January 2018

201851H1H
1 January 2018

201851 H1H

1 January 2018

2018%1H1H
1 January 2018
20181 H1H
1 January 2018

201851 H1H
1 January 2018

201851 H1H

1 January 2018

20191 A1H
1 January 2019

201951 H1H
1 January 2019

BEREE

To be determined



%4 B 7% 3R = MY 3F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BRIESBER  BRIMAKBAARE FLIR)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 EXEBEREBE®

21 REEEE®
(b) [Ef K FR AN B9 BT 5T 2 Bl LI & 2 Bl 59 &
B REEFE %)
AEBECRBTE LM FETER A RE
Al kEzENTE  EhETHEEH
REEMNEERMR - KRN ZSHE]ER]
RIENBEHIASHASERNKLCEFEEK
MBRABKERNTLE -

BB B G ERF 15 FEF A FRA

FR M B R EERFE155 BB AR KA
£R: BB ERFEBRBWARTE S
SHERIEISREE AR - ARE B AR
ROAERE - FEM K RELELES
M TRHER  BRERRAS AETE
RWANEE LR : (VEREFER
@B ERTHNBLENEE: QBER
SER OO EXZEBRERNAELE K
GREITEMEERFERKA - ZOURA
RAREERWA - ARBRAR A AA
ARBMEHNTEEmARBORENTEE
MEANERSRERATPBRZEE MR
%o WAERBERERE R K E &KW
AERERERENZEHEEENTTE -
EEMBRELENFGRIEREBER
RARBARME R SRR R B R85
AR —ERREBNEFARMEL
WARRERENME - &8 - KERT
AR EHBRERBERTE

RIFFEVEMEELE155 - BERNE
TRHEERERRA - ERHHZEE
MEBELR - RABT AR RS ERFE155R
ARHERABBANSEEBRETE - It
FETERI TR IR FR2018F1 AR AR I &
EHEAER - BT AEBEYLE
BRILZEROEE B2 58
BREEHI KRB BUEREEDNE
REPHERRLBEERATE -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments and interpretations
to standards not yet adopted (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the

impact of the above new standards and amendments and

interpretations to standards, certain of which are relevant to the

Group’s operations. The adoption of these new standards and

amendments is not expected to have a material impact on the

Group’s operating results or financial position.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 replaces the previous revenue standards: HKAS 18
Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction Contracts, and the related
interpretations on revenue recognition. HKFRS 15 establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining when to recognize
revenue and how much revenue to recognize through a 5-step
approach: (1) Identify the contract(s) with customer; (2) Identify
separate performance obligations in a contract; (3) Determine
the transaction price; (4) Allocate transaction price to
performance obligations; and (5) Recognise revenue when
performance obligation is satisfied. The core principle is that a
company should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to the customer in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. It moves away
from a revenue recognition model based on an approach of
transfer of risk and rewards to an approach based on transfer
HKFRS 15 provides specific guidance on
capitalisation of contract cost and licence arrangements. It also
includes a cohesive set of disclosure requirements about the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from the entity’s contracts with customers.

of control.

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognizes revenue when a
performance obligation is satisfied. The adoption of HKFRS 15
may have impact on the amount of revenue recognised when
multiple performance obligations are
standard is expected to be effective for the annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Based on the preliminary
assessment, the Group has not identified multiple performance
obligations and expects no material impact upon adoption of
HKFRS 15 to the financial statements other than the

presentation of additional disclosure.

identified. The new
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72 & B 7% 3R 3= MY 2 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BRIEZB R - BRIFA BHBAARE TL37R)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 EXEBEREBE®

21 REEE

(b) [ KR4 B9 5T E B LI R £ Bl g9 1&
XR2EE

BB HREEREIR T A

BB EHRELERFEOHR (2014F) £/ T

BB BEB G ER IR EBIBLER o

ERYBRELNFORBEFLIARE

DHE-EcMEEER BEKAE - A

FEFAEMEZERE RIZAFETA

BEm NDHENEREEERIAMNNE

BARZETAARBSRABFERTE

BETEMNREBREREZEATEEZ - A

e EREETA Rt RIEEEMEE

AVWSBRZBNMETA - R TAT)
RRXHANMTBAE - AR FENZEHNIE
SmPEY - ARBEEHUHTEAHES
MEENDBLFAELBEATE -

TRBESAMEA : BEKANMRATE
APARE - R TTESRBEREE /K
NP EFAESD  MERBERAFHNEER
REPMEFNAFEEHEEMLEE
W ER BREZFAFEEHESE
BIEEM SR HEE  ERIBRT  FAER

AR BEERTEREER - ERRRS
EnmBEneRAE(BRTESRE
B) MERAFEEHEEATE - &
RHIREEFERBEER/RAFENA
BENEMABENARTE  MAKEY
BEREFRE WHAKESRAENAKR
FEALBEATE -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments and interpretations
to standards not yet adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 (2014), “Financial instruments” replaces the whole of
HKAS 39. HKFRS 9 has three financial asset classification
categories for investments in debt instruments: amortized cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income (“OCI”) and fair
value through profit or loss. Classification is driven by the
entity’s business model for managing the debt instruments and
their contractual cash flow characteristics. Investments in equity
instruments are always measured at fair value. However,
management can make an irrevocable election to present
changes in fair value in OCI, provided the instrument is not held
for trading. If the equity instrument is held for trading, changes
in fair value are presented in profit or loss. The Group does not
expect the new standard to have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial assets.

For financial liabilities there are two classification categories:
amortized cost and fair value through profit or loss. Where non-
derivative financial liabilities are designated at fair value through
profit or loss, the changes in the fair value due to changes in
the liability’s own credit risk are recognized in OCI, unless such
changes in fair value would create an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss, in which case, all fair value movements are
recognized in profit or loss. There is no subsequent recycling of
the amounts in OCI to profit or loss. For financial liabilities held
for trading (including derivative financial liabilities), all changes in
fair value are presented in profit or loss. There will be no
material impact on the Group’s accounting for financial
liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the accounting for
financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit
or loss and the Group does not have any such liabilities.

114 =s=rERERHERAT WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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(BRIESBER  BRIMAKBAARE FLIR)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 EXEBR#ME®

21 EREE )

(b) [ 5 R A 89 R 5T 2 Bl LA & % Bl 89 15
X REFEE)

BEN B G EREIN 2 d T A %)
BB R E LR FEIWS|I A 2R FER

BEEBEER — FHEEEAESR - B
REEBSHEAFFNEELHEER
B HERARZBERA> BENERE
E RAFEFAEMZARSENERET
B BEMBHREENFISRELERK
AFEMEREE - FWHENRE - BEX
EERE ?%ﬁ#%AHo$¢!h$ﬁ
%ﬁﬂﬁmﬁ%ﬁTwL%m%;
AT - ML 2R ﬁh%ﬁwﬁ
BBX-

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments and interpretations
to standards not yet adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 introduces a new model for the recognition of
impairment losses — the expected credit losses (ECL) model,
which constitutes a change from the incurred loss model in
HKAS 39. It applies to financial assets classified at amortised
cost, debt instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, contract assets under HKFRS 15
Revenue from contracts with customers, lease receivables, loan
commitments and certain financial guarantee contracts. While
the Group has not yet undertaken a detailed assessment of
how its impairment provisions would be affected by the new
model, it may result in an earlier recognition of credit losses.
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(BRIEZB R - BRIFA BHBAARE TL37R)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 EXEBEREBE®

22 WEBAE

2218 #
MEBARAASEZEGNER(BES
BHEER)  EAKE2EBEENEH
AERZFAAEEOHR - UARFEIER
HEENRIZEZFORE - AIAKE

AEBZBREEHFARK - HB AR EZH
BEIEZARELESHAR -

@) XEE G
AEERBURESHEBEBEHAR -
KERNBARNEEREANEEME
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over

which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity

when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns

from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect

those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are

consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to

the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control

ceases.

(@) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred. l|dentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share
in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(@) Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the

acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held

equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the

acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-

measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

income.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control over a subsidiary, any

retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at

the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying

amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial

carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting

for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or

financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised

in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are

accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the

Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

This means that certain amounts previously recognised in other

comprehensive income may be reclassified to profit or loss.

2.2.2Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the board of
directors that makes strategic decisions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the entities

within the Group are measured using the currency of the

primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the

“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements

are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the Company’s

functional currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the consolidated income statement
within ‘finance income or expense’. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated income
statement within “other gains — net”.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated

using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery 10 years
Vehicles 4 years
Computer and electronic equipment 3-5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Interior decoration 5 years

Except for the residual values rate of interior decoration which is
zero, the residual values rate of other property, plant and
equipment are 5%.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “other gains - net” in the consolidated income statement.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and is
stated at cost less impairment losses. Historical expenditure
that is directly attributable to the construction comprises
construction costs, the cost of plant and machinery and
applicable borrowing costs incurred during the construction
period. No provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time as the relevant assets are completed
and ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are
brought into use, the costs are transferred to property, plant
and equipment categories and depreciated in accordance with
the policy mentioned above.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.6 Investment property
Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land and
buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group.
Investment properties that are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Investment property is initially measured at
cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Investment
properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis, at rates
sufficient to write off their costs over their estimated useful lives
of 20 to 50 years. The residual values and useful lives of
investment properties are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate
at each balance sheet date. The effects of any revision are
included in the consolidated income statement when the
changes arise.

2.7 Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and losses. Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on which
various plants and buildings are situated for periods varying
from 45 to 50 years. Amortisation of land use rights is
calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of the land
use rights.

impairment

2.8 Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent computer software, which are
amortised over their estimated useful lives not exceeding five
years.

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term. Derivatives are also categorized as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if expected to be settled within
12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for the
amounts that are settled or expected to be settled more than
12 months after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans and
receivables comprise “trade and other receivables” (note 2.14),
“restricted cash”, “time deposits” and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the balance sheet (note 2.15).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
2.10.2Recognition and measurement
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement. Financial
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

assets are

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
‘Other gains — net’ in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement as
part of other income when the Group’s right to
payments is established.

receive

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

is a
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised
cost
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value
using an observable market price.

investment has a

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business.
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

If collection of trade and other receivables is

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

When the terms of trade and other receivables that would
otherwise be past due or impaired have been renegotiated,
trade and other receivables are remeasured using the revised
effective interest method determined according to the
renegotiated terms and conditions. Any difference between the
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables before and
after the renegotiation is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs

directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are

shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.17 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company and Company’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse

in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there

is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against

current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes

assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable

entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a

net basis.

2.19 Employee benefits

The Group operates various post-employment schemes,
including defined contribution pension plans.

(a) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b)
when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is
within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to accept the
offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period are discounted to their present value.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs and
legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Warranty provision mainly represents the estimation cost of
providing maintenance services as well as the replacement of
accessories in connection with the quality warranty based on
past experience.

—Z -t FEE#HRE ANNUAL REPORT 2017

129



72 & B 7% 3R 3= MY 2 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BRIEZB R - BRIFA BHBAARE TL37R)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 EXEFBEHEE®
2.21 Y N TE R
WA T RE R BB EN AT EE -
ﬁﬁﬂ%1FEWMFWMEH£ﬁW
BREREEMENHE BERANHE
Hb%’]jsﬁﬁ‘l'i *X%&/ %'J TE(TE\E//ZI:L
FHER MASEEEEHHFETIM
FERGR  AEEBRARA - AEEE
BREBAKBRIERTL,ERN X518
HEMGETEFREL MR -

(a) ERBHEHE
AEBITERZ=LEERBEE R M4
HmEERNERBLER E5mMA
e REHRABBERS - AARENRN
EmTEP QEXLZERRGHEMAGE
HEARABULRE) ROQFFEEKWEK
BRI EEAEMRBETEER  AKE
CHRAHERBEENWA -

(b) BEEHMA
REWMEHESWARE B IAE GERER
Bl R AFER

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for
goods supplied, stated net of discounts returns and value-
added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliable measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below. The Group bases its estimates on historical
experience, taking into consideration the type of customer, the
type of transaction and the specification of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of
a range of equipment for steel wire production lines and
standalone machineries. Revenue from sale of equipment is
recognised when the risk and reward of the goods has been
transferred to the customer, which is usually upon (1) delivery of
products to the customer; (2) completion of the installation and
on-site testing (if required in the sale contract); and (3) the
acceptance by the customer of the equipment without any
further unfulfilled obligation.

(b) Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loans and receivables are recognised using the original

effective interest rate.

2.23 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached

conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The overall
risk management program of the Group focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on financial performance of the Group.

(a) Market risk

() Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when transactions or recognized
assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the
entity’s functional currency.

The Group operates in the PRC with most of the Group’s
transactions denominated and settled in RMB. The Group’s
assets and liabilities, and transactions arising from its operations
do not expose the Group to material foreign exchange risk as
most of the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2017 are denominated in the respective group companies’
functional currencies.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets (other
than bank balances and cash, details of which have been
disclosed in Note 24), the Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s has no interest-bearing liabilities as
at the year-end date.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank deposits, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and trade and other receivables.
The carrying amounts or the undiscounted nominal amounts,
where applicable, of each class of these financial assets
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to the corresponding class of financial assets.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

To manage the credit risk, bank deposits and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are placed with/issued by highly
reputable financial institutions.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that products are
sold to customers with appropriate credit history. The Group
assesses the creditworthiness of a customer by closely
examining a number of indicators which include its financial and
operational (including whether the customer’s
production facilities are in full operation, the site of the facilities,
scale of operation, and the customer’s amount of investments
in property, plant and equipment), rating and
competitive landscape of the market. Based on such
assessment and the value of the relevant contract, the Group
set a maximum balance of amount due allowable for a
customer. The finance department of the Group monitors the
past due trade receivables and directs the sales personnel to
follow up the collection of the trade receivables. The sales
department of the Group also set up a credit profile for each
customer. Record relating to the transactions with the customer
is updated monthly to monitor the amount of sales, payment,
accumulated amount outstanding, amount past due and unpaid,
and accumulated bad debts made as at the end of the month.
The finance department of the Group monitors and updates the
customer’s trade receivables position from time to time, keeps
track of the movement of the trade receivables, and ensures
that the outstanding amounts due do not exceed the maximum
balance allowable for a customer. Specific review on the
recoverability of past due trade receivables is performed on a
regular
impairment of trade receivables is set out in Note 19. Normally
the Group does not require collateral from trade debtors.

conditions

its credit

basis and detailed disclosure of allowance for
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group exercises prudent liquidity risk management by
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
business, the Group aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by
maintaining adequate amount of cash and cash equivalents.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the consolidated balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

LIR1E
Less than
1 year
At 31 December 2017
Trade and other payables (note (i) 89,063
Total 89,063
At 31 December 2016
Trade and other payables (note (i) 46,238
Total 46,238

(i) Excluding other taxes payable, employee benefits payable and provision for
quality warranty expenses.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt calculated as total
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, time deposits and
restricted bank deposits. Total capital is calculated as “equity”
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus net debts. As
at 31 December 2017, the Group had no external borrowings.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

Financial instruments carried at fair value are measured by
different valuation methods. The inputs to valuation methods are
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy, as
follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)
(level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level
3).

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried at fair value based on level 2 valuation method.
There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the
year.

Other than the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, the carrying amounts of the Group’s other financial assets
(including trade and other receivables, restricted bank deposits,
time deposits and cash and cash equivalents) and short-term
liabilities (including trade and other payables) approximate their
fair values due to their short-term maturities.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Current and deferred income taxes

Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for
income tax. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provision in the period in which such determination
is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers to
be probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such differences will impact the recognition of income tax
assets and taxation in the periods in which such estimate is
changed.

—Z -t FEE#HRE ANNUAL REPORT 2017

137



e B A& 3R R M 5F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BRIEZB R - BRIFA BHBAARE TL37R)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

4 FHEETFETRIE®
(b) EZEKZIERE
MESEWREmMS  BEENZXEHA

EERLCERERBERBR  BHFMH
SRR M UAZE - (T fh ET A B R E B
e MBEBEEAFEHXEREE - BRA
FARRRR AT BE BRI E - R A% H UK
REH A - MBEHBREREMGFTT
Rl AIEMEZEBFEER G EEH
8] 8 5 & WOk TR # BR (B MORUE S e

NE B E F20179F 2016512 ATIHM &
SEWZBREENME19HE -

(c) FEREAE

AEERBSEEARIFEREE - AE
FETF B = B A B A] 8 3R 5 (B W & ]
HMBEEIR AEBEREFEHRE
EBRBEINEER AR BEUFENBER

%ﬁfﬁﬁkﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ—m‘f‘iﬁ%ﬁ 1 i fl 5T
PIABRNEEFNES B<HFERER
BIEINFOR D e

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables

The management estimates the allowance for impairment of
trade receivables by assessing their recoverability individually
with reference to the past repayment history as well as
subsequent settlement status. Allowances are applied to these
receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying amount of trade receivables and the
impairment charge in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables of the Group as at
31 December 2017 and 2016 were disclosed in Note 19.

(c) Allowance for inventories

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of inventories at each
balance sheet date to determine whether the inventories are
carried at lower of cost and net realisable value. The Group
estimates the net realisable value of each inventory, based on its
related selling price less additional cost to sale and historical
experience on similar inventories. Any change in the
assumptions used in making the estimates would increase or
decrease the amount of allowance of inventories.
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ERREEMEAARRRINES
%ﬁ RRERAEBEKAE
5 EB 0 W AR I 2 B B RS Rk o

AEBFTERELEEMBEE—RIAR
R M A R MAERE o Bl 220174 %2016
F12A31B L FEREHEEERAOK AL
—|T:

5 REVENUE

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”) has been
identified as the board of directors of the Company. The CODM
regards the Group’s business as a single operating segment
and reviews the financial statements accordingly.

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of
a range of equipment for manufacturing steel wire products.
Revenues from sale of goods for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

T E AR
— ERERWHEER

— HfbEER
B

HEREEE  THrREMS

Ha WA

HE12AALEE
Year ended 31 December
20174 20164F
2017 2016
Production lines
— Brass electroplating wire
production lines 21,265 59,447
— Other production lines 20,355 11,363
Standalone machines 94,974 10,982
Other mould repairing equipment,
components parts and
accessories 21,603 28,439
Rental income 2,387 2,053
160,584 112,284
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5 W A () 5 REVENUE (continued)
B E2017F K2016F12H31B IEFE - K For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the
ANBEOHIBERAT geographical information on the total revenue is as follows:
HE12A3BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20174 20164F
2017 2016
A Revenue
— KR — Mainland China 97,805 87,146
— HAfth — Others 62,779 25,138
160,584 112,284

AREEHKRARBUTIHINEZE - The Group’s revenues were derived from the following external
EFEEEEANEBR W A10%BA F o customers that individually contributed more than 10% of the
Group’s revenues.

>D§L\\I':
4
o

HEZ12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December

20174 20164

2017 2016

RNAEA Company A 41,533 A5 AN/A

~A)B Company B 39,785 AN 5E FN/A

~aC Company C 21,540 25,138

A~aED Company D A EAN/A 22,657

AAE Company E A #ERAN/A 20,067
1 FE FE U A S 4G AN £ @ 42 Uk A10% Bk A E o i The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more of the Group’s total

revenue.
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6 HHUEHIATHHRRZ 6 EXPENSES BY NATURE
H#E12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
BERMEEHONTFEES Changes in inventories of finished
goods and work in progress (44,559) 10,890
it F R i Raw materials used 134,676 55,655
& B &M (M17E9) Employee benefit expenses
(note 9) 17,611 15,305
e & # 85 (M 3E13 - 14 ~ 155%16)  Depreciation and amortisation
(notes 13, 14, 15 and 16) 9,720 9,296
INBREE (K@) Outsourced installation fee (note(a)) 6,503 1,493
H Al T 78 X Other tax charges 3,323 2,358
EaHx Transportation expenses 2,158 1,441
EXEH Professional fees 1,844 2,917
Z R F X Travelling expenses 1,830 1,555
XBHEFE Entertainment expenses 1,762 1,134
% S1RD B & Auditor’s remuneration
— FRB — Audit services 1,491 1,698
mAE R Office expenses 958 818
FERE(BERE) BE (Reversal of allowance)/allowance
for impairment of inventories (1,172) 4,379
JIE LR SR T8 R (B 4B 47 B [0 % BR Net reversal of allowance for
impairment of receivables (9,565) (6,218)
HiAx Other expenses 1,107 811
BEHERE HERX RITBHFEX Total cost of sales, selling
expenses and administrative
expenses 127,687 103,532
B & - Note:
@ BT B A IR T BT e R A (a) The outsourced installation fees were commissions paid to companies which
SEAHESE provided professional installation services on an as-needed basis.
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7 HiA 7 OTHER INCOME
HEZ12A31BLERE
Year ended 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
AT 48 B (B 3% () Government subsidies (note (a)) 317 15
#E B R (M 5E (o) Value-added tax (“VAT”) refunds
(note (b)) 205 1,856
522 1,871
B 5 - Notes:

Government subsidies mainly represented subsidies for the Group’s technical
research projects and for corporate development.

@) BAMEEIERASEXMTEEEMERE @
KERME -

According to the relevant tax regulations, the sales of self-developed software
products of a wholly-owned subsidiary, Wuxi Haisheng Software Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Haisheng Software”), was entitled to VAT refunds from December
2011 until October 2016. In March 2017, Haisheng Software was approved to
be entitled to VAT refunds for the sale of self-developed software products
from March 2017 to March 2022.

) RIEEEBELEE  2EHBARES SR (0)
REARAR(EREF)EEETRESRGE
mARER2011FE12 A E2016 10 A R ZF A E
FiR B o M2017438H /5 B 8 & 15 #E fE R
201753 A £ 20224 3 A HAfHI 5t 84 & B 17 B &N
ERZAEERRH -

8 HuUk — B 8 OTHER GAINS - NET

HE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20174 20164F
2017 2016
HEZR QA FEFAERZD Gains on disposal of financial
TREEN K assets at fair value through profit
or loss 3,895 3,038
BEAFEFAEBZMNE/MEER  Unrealised fair value gain on
REBR AN FEKD financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,202 248
fE 5518 Foreign exchange losses - @)
HAt Others - 377
5,097 3,660
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9 REERAMAX 9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
HEF12AALEE
Year ended 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
TE  HFehkBEBEA Wages, salaries and discretionary
bonuses 12,875 10,957
Hitt 2 REMKRAE - EHFEEF KX Other social security costs,
Hth g 518 7 housing benefits and other
employee benefits 2,667 2,378
BAREKA — REHKEE Pension costs — defined
contribution plans 2,069 1,970
17,611 15,305
(@ ABEmREHAL (a) Five highest paid individuals

FARKEERE &= I AT BEME (2016 The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the

F-MB)ES  BEOBESRHIFEI4F7 Group for the year include two (2016: two) directors whose

THDITRRE - FRERNEES =5 (2016 emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 34. The

F:ZZ)ALTHHES U T : emoluments payable to the remaining three (2016: three)
individuals during the year are as follows:

HE12ABLEE
Year ended 31 December
20174 20164F
2017 2016
TE - e RkIEL Wages, salaries and bonuses 762 683
HEiiE 5@ 7 Other employee benefits 216 214
978 897
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9 EEwRIMEX®
B <& 9 - LA T &6 B /9 A B

< & = (B 7T)

Z 21,000,000 T HHERS

A R #832,8007T)

10 MBWA — F8H

AR5 H
— [EREE

LR N
—  RITHABHWA
— RERFBEAEHE

BN - F8#

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)
The number of individuals whose emoluments fell within the

following bands:

Emolument bands (in HK$)
Nil-HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to
nil-RMB832,800)

10 FINANCE INCOME -

Finance expense:
— Foreign exchange losses

Finance income:

— Bank interest income

— Amortisation of unearned
financial income

Finance income - net
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HBF12A31HILEE
Year ended 31 December
20174 20164F
2017 2016
3 3
NET
BF12A31HILEE
Year ended 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
(1,371) —
(1,371) —
1,841 1,577
1,669 —
3,510 1,577
2,139 1,577



%4 B 7% 3R = MY 3F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BRIESBER  BRIMAKBAARE FLIR)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11 FRHRAX (H%)

EHMMEH — PREEEMER
i FE T 15 ¢ (P 5E20)
Fiabibx (%)

BRI R Bl R FAE SN - AN E
BAFAEMBEERIAER

PEEEFREHR
RSB E R B A S ) BB A R TR
WARBBEMEM

RETEECEMAGREA(HEEMREH
%1) - A2008F1 AR  FTEREER
R 1 TS B 48— /525% ©

@ WBEFLEMSHZE AAFMHE
B¥mBHEAR25% - REHT
¥MBRHENBEER A7 R
2016 BE2018 F ZF & & # 1y
EE o Bt - ARAIRELE2017
F12A318 1t F E &% A15% (2016
F15%) MBELERESHE -

(o) AREZEKHBAREGEREFR2012
FRSHEEMBBETHRKILE
HEENER - TP BB
BET  BRBHERELERSEN
ME - MEEE=F(BERERTEF
FEMREENEERZ) RAB AZE
B50%EABERE - BREHNE
8 25 & F[E B2012F - At -
HEREER017FIAIBETEESR
LB EBER - MR EE20175F12
ABLFEREANGEMBR X
£525% (20164F : 12.5%) °

11

Income tax expense/(credit)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

Current income tax — PRC
corporate income tax
Deferred income tax (note 20)

HE12A3BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
348 1,772
6,852 (14,520)
7,200 (12,748)

Except for the PRC corporate income tax described below, the
Group is not subject to income tax of other jurisdictions.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

CIT is provided on the assessable income of entities within the
Group established in the PRC.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (the “New CIT
Law”), the CIT is unified at 25% for all types of entities,
effective from 1 January 2008.

@)

The Company’s applicable CIT rate is 25% according to
the New CIT Law. Under the relevant regulations of the
New CIT Law, the Company qualified as High/New Tech
Enterprise for three years from 2016 to 2018. Therefore,
the Company applied a reduced CIT rate of 15% for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: 15%).

Haisheng Software, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, was qualified as a newly established software
enterprise under the New CIT Law in 2012. As approved
by the PRC tax authorities, Haisheng Software was
exempt from CIT for two vyears, followed by a 50%
reduction in the applicable tax rates for the next three
years, commencing from the first cumulative profit-making
year net of losses carried forward. The first cumulative
profit-making year of Haisheng Software was 2012.
Therefore, Haisheng Software was not entitled to the
aforementioned preferential policy commencing from 1
January 2017 and applied a CIT rate of 25% during the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: 12.5%).
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11 RS (ER)e 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

R R AaRANERMEH X EER The difference between the actual income tax charge in the

MAMBERAECEGHEMEEENS consolidated income statements and the amount which would

H2RMEZE AJHERAT: result from applying the enacted tax rate to profit before tax
can be reconciled as follows:

#E12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
B% Fr 15 Bi g0 F H Profit before income tax 40,655 15,860
BAE M EB%ET B /T IA Taxation calculated at the statutory
tax rate of 25% 10,164 3,965
NTRENTE: Effects of:
ETEBEERZANERMEM  Preferential income tax enjoyed by
certain group entities (2,822) (1,884)
Bt 3% 5 S #4058 SN BE 0B Extra deduction allowance for
research and development
expenses (473) (250)
WERRDELEFEMREEMNTIE  Tax losses for which no deferred
B8 income tax asset was
recognized 81 58
WEEREILERESHEENE R Temporary difference for which no
=8 deferred income tax asset was
recognized - 817
FRBT Y EERETEFRSH Utilisation of temporary difference
EEMEREEZR for which no deferred income tax
asset was recognized previously (631) —
BRBEVEBERELEMEN Recognition of temporary
EEMEREER difference for which no deferred
income tax asset was
recognized previously - (15,693)
N B ET A5 B H0R B R S Expenses not deductible for
income tax purposes 881 239
sz (E%R) Income tax expense/(credit) 7,200 (12,748)
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12 SEEH 12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

ERERBNNFAETERBBARAIRE The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit

FE A B BR ASE A 38 AR 09 IR S5 & o attributable to the shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in during the year.

HE12A3BLLEE
Year ended 31 December

20174 20164
2017 2016

AArREREGEFBE(ARKETIT) Profit attributable to shareholders

of the Company (RMB'000) 33,455 28,608
BERTETEBRAINEFTHE(FR) Weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue

(thousand) 128,000 128,000
BREXRRESHF Basic and diluted earnings per
(AR¥ETT,/BR) share (RMB/share) 0.26 0.22

B R RN R HR20174F K 201612 A318 I As the Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
AT BERTEINBESEBN  WE shares outstanding as at 31 December 2017 and 2016, diluted

BEMERFNERAGIRERNETF o earnings per share is equal to basic earnings per share.
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13 T Hab{EF#

13 LAND USE RIGHTS

HEZ12A31BLERE
Year ended 31 December

20174 20164F

2017 2016

REY At the beginning of year 25,335 25,785
EREREYE (215 Transfer to investment property

(note 15) (442) —

i Amortisation (619) (450)

REX At the end of year 24,274 25,335

AEBRLHERENESIEEEHE
BRRIE - REE AL ERESL
RAPBIREE - WAREHE AR B46E50%F -

REE T HFEAENBHEDTAITERAX
RIBEXA - ©8H 5B ARK4L55,000
7T & A R ¥164,0007T (20164F : A R #&
330,0007T & A K #120,0007T) °

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepayment
for operating leases. All the land use rights of the Group are
located in Mainland China and are held on leases for 45 to 50
years.

Amortisation of the Group’s land use rights were included in
the administrative expenses and cost of sales in the amount of
RMB455,000 and RMB164,000, respectively (2016:
RMB330,000 and RMB120,000).
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14 YME BERRE

#201651A18
AR
2ithE

RHFE

HE2016F12A3BLEE
ENEEHE

RE

a5

BERZRENE

fie

REER

EAEEEE

120165128318
A
2:HHTE

REFE

BE2017E12A3BLERE
FNEAFE

RE

g

BRERENE (HH5)
HE

REER

EXRREFE
R2017412A318
wA

2itHiE

REFE

At 1 January 2016
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2016
Opening net book amount
Additions

Transfers

Transfer to investment property
Disposals

Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2016
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2017
Opening net book amount

Additions

Transfers

Transfer to investment property (note 15)
Disposals

Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2017
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

| &3

Buildings

100,766
(6,806)

93,960

93,960

13,945
2,498)

(6,085)

100,322

110,477
(10,155)

100,322

100,322

988
(1,753)

(5,191)

94,366

108,827
(14,461)

94,366

Ha

Machinery

7015
(2,441)

4,574

4,574

594

(654)
4514
7609

(3,095)
4514
4,514

499
305

(7)
(730)

4,581

8,374
(3,793)

4,581

TER
RE EYHRE  BAERE
Computer
and
electronic Office
6,587 3,647 997
(3,596) (8,210) (876)
2,991 437 121
2,991 437 121
- 1,102 452
— m —
(1,095) (451) (99)
1,896 1,087 474
6,587 474 1,449
(4,691) (3,654) (975)
1,896 1,087 474
1,896 1,087 474
108 42 92
- - 21
- (6) -
(1,018) (500) (117)
986 623 470
6,695 4,639 1,562
(5,709) (4,016) (1,092)
986 623 470

—Z -t FEE#HRE ANNUAL REPORT 2017

ENEE

Interior
decoration

1150
(159)

997

997

1

o

6

(89)

1,014

1,256
(242)

1,014

1,014

(%8)

916

1,256
(340)

916

ERIE

Construction
in progress

4,914

4,914

4914
9,752
(14,645)

21

21

21

21
1,344
(1,314)

(7,654)

51

51

51

Total

125,076
(17,082)

107,004

107,994
11,306

2,498)

(1)
(7479)

109,328

132,140
(22,812)

109,328

109,328
2,085

(1,753)
(13)

101,993

131,404

(29,411)

101,993
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14 YE BEEREZE®®
WEER N AGEWRERMATER :

&R AR
1T X
i & F 5

15 HEYE

2GRN
R1ATR B F 4 #h
BEAZTIERYME(HED)

TENEHER

12 A31H B F K 45 &
M2 A31H

DN
REtrER#H

FRmEFE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

in the consolidated income statement:

Cost of sales
Administrative expenses
Selling expenses

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At cost

Opening balance at 1 January

Transfer from owner-occupied
property (note b)

Depreciation and amortisation
charge

Closing balance at 31 December

At 31 December

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and
amortisation

Net book amount

1 B0 =smhEssReARAT WUX SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

Depreciation charges were included in the following categories

HBF12A31HILEE
Year ended 31 December
20174 20164F
2017 2016
3,228 1,477
4,210 5,697
216 299
7,654 7,473
BE12A31HILEE
Year ended 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
20,934 19,671
2,195 2,498
(1,404) (1,235)
21,725 20,934
33,532 30,349
(11,807) (9,415)
21,725 20,934
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15 BEYE )
(@) AEEMKEYEMR PR - F A AE ARG

=
5 °

() AEEKREVENATEHBIEXSERMGEE
MTIHTCETRAEFGEBERARNREHE
E-RETREMENRFER - AERTE
AR (EhBHE)ERMSNALRMTIERS5H
BREEE REHEEENEESRANRE
REBEEMR - ME  KREEEERESEAE
BHMARAKBEBRSKRARRE - MEDERK

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a) The Group’s investment properties are located in the PRC and measured using
the cost model.

(b) The fair value of Group’s investment properties are determined by an
independent professional qualified valuer, Jiangsu Zhongtian Assets Appraisal
Office Co., Ltd, on an annual basis. In determining the fair value of the
investment properties, the valuer uses assumptions and estimates that reflect,
amongst other factors, comparable market transactions in an active market,
lease income from current leases and assumptions about lease income from
future leases in light of current market conditions, capitalisation rates, terminal
yield and reversionary income potential. Valuations were based on income

NEBEHEEDT approach for all properties as follows:
®12A31H
As at 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
BEMENRTE Fair value of the investment properties 35,414 33,813

REFTHENRTER  WENES K
REREREERAE AKEREY
ENRFEDRE=ZBRAFEFEELT

SHE -

@ HEREVENGERDAREROHK
LR U

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use. The fair value of
the Group’s investment properties was measured on Level 3 fair
value measurement.

(@ The following amounts have been recognised in the
consolidated income statement for investment properties:

#E12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December

20174 20164

2017 2016

e WA Rental income 2,387 2,053
EEHSBANEZEERS Direct operating expenses that

generate rental income (1,404) (1,235)

983 818
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16 B|EEE 16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
E B
Computer
software
B E2016F12A31H L FE Year ended 31 December 2016
FYREFE Opening net book amount 200
BiHER Amortisation charge (138)
FXRREFEE Closing net book amount 62
#20165E12A31H At 31 December 2016
DN Cost 732
B it Accumulated amortisation (670)
REFE Net book amount 62
8 E2017F12A31HILEE Year ended 31 December 2017
FUEREFEE Opening net book amount 62
BiHEB A Amortisation charge (43)
FRIE@EEE Closing net book amount 19
#2017%E12H31H At 31 December 2017
DN Cost 732
R 5 Accumulated amortisation (713)
R FE Net book amount 19
BEEAENBEER W et R AT Amortisation of the intangible assets has been charged to

R Bk -

administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement.
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(BRIESBER  BRIMAKBAARE FLIR)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

17 B AT

AR AR2017F12 31BN = Z B A A

£5

AFEH

Name of company

TEENERBEHNERERAF

Jiangsu Sunlit Equipment
Technology Company Limited

EHSREHNRAERAT

Wuxi Haisheng Software
Technology Company Limited

17 SUBSIDIARIES

BETR
o % A L 3t 2 & R /EM R12ANBHAFEH REBEEH
HEREBERER A& (Fx) BRED FRMERER
Issued and
Place of paid up/ Effective
incorporation and  registered interest held as
kind of legal capital Effective interest held of the date of
entity (thousand) as at 31 December this report
20174 20164
2017 2016
T BREME A K #5,000 100% 100% 100%
A7)
the PRC, limited RMBS5,000
liability company
T BREME A R #1,080 100% 100% 100%
A7)
the PRC, limited RMB1,080

liability company

—Z -t FEE#HRE ANNUAL REPORT 2017

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2017:

ETREBRESHE

Principal activities and
place of operations

ERBETHRERES

Machinery products trading in
the PRC

FE R BT S R B
BEHNEES

Software development and
software patent rights
trading in the PRC
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

18 #HEMNESHEMIR

2017128318
IINGEEEEBRERNY
BE

B 5 & E e IR
BRAFEFABEDN
TREE

Re kB EEHEE
BRHIES

T B 17 3K

&gt

SINGEEERARMER

B 5 N E A 3R (B &£ (a))

At 31 December 2017

Assets as per consolidated
balance sheet

Trade and other receivables

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Time deposits

Total

balance sheet

BERE
FE& W =k 18

Loans and
receivables

176,718

71,912
49,787
105,763

404,180

Liabilities as per consolidated

Trade and other payables (note (a))

1 54 FEHRNENERHBER AT WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

BAFESA
BaREE st
Assets at fair
value
through
profit or loss Total
- 176,718
77,450 77,450
- 71,912
- 49,787
105,763
77,450 481,630
REHEAEATENESHER

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

89,063
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(BRIESBER  BRIMAKBAARE FLIR)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

18 REHNEI P T R 18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)
BHER RAFEMEEA
FEUWERIE  BEMEE a5t

20165%F12H31H

INGEEEBRER
B&EE

B 5 & E b fE W I8

BRAFEFABED

Re kB EEEE

BRHIE S

gt

Loans and
receivables

At 31 December 2016
Assets as per consolidated
balance sheet
Trade and other receivables 171,275
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss —

Cash and cash equivalents 193,562
Restricted cash 13,096
Total 377,933

JINGFEEEEBRRNEAER Liabilities as per consolidated balance

sheet
BN EMENAREM @)  Trade and other payables (note (a)) 46,238
B 5 - Note:
(@) TEEEMENTIE  ENEERINKESRE (@) Excluding other taxes payable, employee benefits payable and provision for

R B -

quality warranty expenses.

Assets at fair
value through

profit or loss Total
— 171,275

30,248 30,248

— 193,562

— 13,096

30,248 408,181

RBENATENCRAE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

—Z -t FEE#HRE ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19 B RAMBEKRIE

BHRWFKEA — £=77 (M iE@E)
B RBERFBEA
& W 3= 1% (M4 &£ (b))

& WA B
Hi WA — F=77

5 75 0 SO AL 1

H A 8 R TR R (B R

D

UL
w
=
5

$ 3

=it
e

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables — third parties
(note (@)
Less: unearned financial income

Notes receivable (note (b))
Interest receivable
Other receivables — third parties

Less:

Allowance for impairment of trade
receivables

Allowance for impairment of other
receivables

Non-current portion
Current portion

1 56 FEAGER N IZERE R A R A T WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

®12A318

As at 31 December

2017%F
2017

170,729
(794)

169,935
78,095
919
635

249,584

(72,467)

(399)

(72,866)

176,718

176,718

176,718

20164
2016

194,441
(2,463)

191,978
65,673
378

718

258,747

(87,260)

(212)

(87,472)

171,275

15,922
155,353

171,275



%4 B 7% 3R = MY 3F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(RIESHEFTH  TAFMBHBEUARE T ILSR)  (Alamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19 BESRHEMEBWKRRIES 19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

B 5 - Notes:

(@) e =R =R [DAREZBEEANEBHE S (a) Apart from a portion of the contract sum retained by customers to cover the
BEEREDH $%.Iﬁ&$ﬁ%éﬁwﬁg}5 Group’s product quality warranty, the Group does not grant credit terms to
EFEEH - R2017FE12 8318 © E 5 E WS IE customers in the sales contract. Included in trade receivables as at 31
BIEZE R B EHIEH A RKS8,552,0007T (2016 December 2017 are such retained sums of approximately RMB58,552,000
£ A\ R ¥66,112,0007T) ' 152 5 fE Wk 2 E & (2016: RMB66,112,000) representing 34.3% (2016: 34.0%) of trade receivables.
34.3% (20164F : 34.0%) ° X ZREHBNE & These are due for collection upon the expiry of product quality warranty
BEREH(—METEBRKRELE12EAE period (which is usually 12 months from the acceptance by the customer of
1% B B UL B o the equipment).

(b) AREBNEREERERITANERE NEEX (b) Notes receivable of the Group and the Company include bank acceptance notes
HEE B—HRKRAAFZXEHE SEARSG and commercial acceptance notes, and are usually settled within six months
= from the date of issue.

NBEEEARBEZESENFENEZEHNER D Aging analysis based on recognition date of the gross trade receivables at the

Mo : respective balance sheet dates are as follows:

®12A31H
As at 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016

1F A Within 1 year 52,626 42,853

1E24F 1-2 years 33,535 8,369

REsEyaE 2-3 years 3,261 80,496

3EMN F Over 3 years 81,307 62,723

170,729 194,441

LTEBEBEmABENE S EWRIRIATY The following trade receivables which were past due but not

B AHYRERCHENBELIRE,E impaired related to a number of independent customers with no

fg o ZEZ SN IBEMERB ST : recent history of default. The aging analysis of these trade
receivables is as follows:

®12A31H8
As at 31 December

20174 20164F
2017 2016
BEIFEN Past due within 1 year 15,634 29,311
BHIE24F Past due for 1 to 2 years 12,239 5,787
#HEA2 = 34F Past due for 2 to 3 years 950 7,253
BHISE LA Past due over 3 years - 225
28,823 42,576

==t FERE ANNUALREPORT2017  1B7
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(BRIESEER - TAIFAHBEUARE FL5)78)  (Alamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19 ESRHEMBEBWKRIE®

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

KIS RENEZEWKIBLAT Trade receivables wholly or partially impaired are as follows:
®12A31H
As at 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
B 5 W RIE Trade receivables 114,256 94,085
BE R Allowance for impairment (72,467) (87,260)

BHRUKA — F8

Trade receivables-net 41,789 6,825

ZEERAEMNE S EWIER R #R 2 47 10 The aging analysis of these impaired trade receivables are as
T 8 follows:
®12A31H
As at 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
1 Within 1 year 37,011 4,482
1224 1-2 years 14,100 5,825
2E3F 2-3 years 6,575 27,396
3FEM £ Over 3 years 56,570 56,382
114,256 94,085
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(BRIESBER  BRIMAKBAARE FLIR)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19 BESRHEMGBEKIRIE®
AREBES N EMEWFIBENEREENLT

JIEEEE:

AR
e

B 5 5 fh e U 3K 9 (8 4 52 )

T

MW1R1E N EDE 65
RHINRE BB

R (B 7% 7 ]

i 3H A 1 BT U B 9 8 U R TR

W12A31B B &FE R & 63

ERENEBEFRAREBENRIEERD
A KRB U R 2R A A [ R TRURR 18 3
oK) - MBEWMBERAORE RN

T8 H3 1 RE Wk (2] BB 13T & B MBS e

Vi

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the group’s trade and other

receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

»12A31H
As at 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
RMB 243,043 257,032
US dollar 6,541 1,715
249,584 258,747

Movements of allowance for impairment of trade and other
receivables are as follows:

HE12ABLEE
Year ended 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
Opening balance at 1 January 87,472 106,877
Additional allowance for
impairment 9,313 8,727
Reversal of allowance for
impairment (18,878) (14,945)
Receivables written off as
uncollectible (5,041) (13,187)
Closing balance at 31
December 72,866 87,472

The creation and release of allowance for impaired receivables
have been included in “Reversal of allowance for impairment of
receivables” in the consolidated income statement (note 6).

Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written
off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.
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19 BESRHMGBEKRIE®
BN EMERZIENEMBENT IS
ERESEE °

BN EMEWFEN A FERK@E
BE e

ReEEEHEENESEERR T L
EREWKRBENREE ~KEY &S
BEMERRAIEER -

20 BEFRBEE — FHE
EEFEREEATIOT :

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain impaired assets.

The fair values of trade and other receivables approximate their
carrying amounts.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the carrying amounts of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS — NET
The analysis of deferred income tax assets is as follows:

»12A31H
As at 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
IREFEBEE: Deferred income tax assets:
— BB E1218 B % Uk g — to be recovered after more
than 12 months 10,863 20,554
— B R12{E A A U [El — to be recovered within
12 months 6,678 3,658
17,541 24,212
BEFMBBAE: Deferred income tax liabilities:
— #1218 A AU El — to be recovered within
12 months (218) (37)
BEFBBEE — FE Deferred income tax assets
— net 17,323 24175
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(BRIESBER  BRIMAKBAARE FLIR)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

20 BEERTBBEE — FE®

BEEFEREEFEZHNT

1201651A18
A/ () KER

At 1 January 2016

statement

20164128318
(na)/FAKEE

At 31 December 2016

statement

#20175128318 At 31 December 2017

A FJRE S 1B R PR FE SR B A B i AR R A
B =S R0MEE AEEeRHEE
BEERRELEMESHEE - R2017F12
AS18 » 2N 5 B 37 5 L A] 45 85 DA 3K 45 R 2R
ERBMUANBTEEEBEERHOARE
3,086,0007T (20164F : A R¥2,781,0007T)
WRIELEFTFHEENARET771,0007T
(20164 : AR%695,0007T) ° 12017412
A318 - KRR IBEE A K%1,035,000
7T+ A R #1,515,0007C « A R #212,000
7T K& A K #324,0007T o Bl 7A20194F -
20204F - 20214 ;2022 F &I #f -

201712 A31H - AN & B /) ] K 30 & B
M ZER 4 A AREI7,142,0007T (20164 :
AR ¥135,996,0007T) - AEBEEHZE
MR E 2N ARE1,224,0007T
(20164 : A R #127,879,0007T ) #E 32 I 1E
MIBEE o BT AAIHE B R B R E 7] A
NI AT ENEREZE W ERR
BR AT 0 E R &= 2 4 A R #5,918,000
70 (20164F : A R #8,117,0007T) #E R i 1T
MIBEE -

Credited/(charged) to the income

(Charged)/credited to the income

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS — NET
(Continued)

The movement on the deferred income tax assets — net is as
follows:

WEEE RBHAHP 2FEHLE HIEBE Hit @t
Allowance
for Unrealised Fair value
impairment profit gains Tax losses Others Total
6,341 125 - 2,907 282 9,655
11,769 213 (37) 2,175 400 14,520
18,110 338 (37) 5,082 682 24175
(3,854) 813 (181) (3,263) (367) (6,852)
14,256 1,151 (218) 1,819 315 17,323

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
2017, the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of approximately RMB771,000 (2016: RMB695,000) for tax
losses of approximately RMB3,086,000 (2016: RMB2,781,000)
that can be carried forward against future taxable income. As at
31 December 2017, the unrecognized tax losses amounting to
RMB1,035,000, RMB1,515,000, RMB212,000 and RMB324,000
will expire in 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had deductible
temporary differences of approximately RMB97,142,000
(2016: RMB135,996,000). A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately RMB91,224,000 (2016:
RMB127,879,000) of such deductible temporary differences.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining deductible temporary differences of approximately
RMB5,918,000 (2016: RMB8,117,000) as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised.

—Z -t FEE#HRE ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

21 B8 21 INVENTORIES
»12A318
As at 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
R4 % Raw materials 16,510 13,721
SR Work in progress 40,161 29,535
2P fh Finished goods 35,937 2,668
92,608 45,924

HE2017F12A3BILFE  BRARX
WETATHERRINTFEKREINAARE
88,945,000t (20164F : A R #70,924,000
) ERBRFEREREREARKE
1,172,0007T (20164F : A R %4,379,000
JT) °

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the cost of inventories
recognised as expense and included in “cost of sales” amounted
to approximately RMB88,945,000 (2016: RMB70,924,000), which
included the reversal of allowance for impairment of inventories
of RMB1,172,000 (2016: RMB4,379,000).
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

22 FAFEFANEEHNENEE

an
&
Ho}
il

HE SR

MEEEEMHTENRRCREES
2 RERPERTABRTEERSE
EFRERBUENEREE -

MEEEEMMREREARS  RIIMAH
M o
BRAFEFABGNEBREEN A FE
EParelaiRtn/Eals — F
#IPARR (M EE8) -

23 FEft®RIE

A 38 1B A N B B IR

Wealth

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

management products

»12A31H
As at 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
77,450 30,248

The wealth management products were managed by licensed
financial institutions in the PRC to invest in the financial assets
issued by the Chinese banks with higher credit rate and

liquidity.

The wealth management products were guaranteed return of
principal and redeemable before maturity date.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in ‘other gains — net’ in the
consolidated income statement (note 8).

23 PREPAYMENTS

Prepayments for value added tax

and other taxes

BB R R R TR S FROR

Prepayments for purchase of raw

materials

»12A31H
As at 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
511 1,686
264 566
775 2,252
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24 BRERREEHEIER 24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
®12A318
As at 31 December
20174 20164F
2017 2016
BRITREFRS Cash at bank and on hand 69,415 148,660
RITIFE Bank deposits 158,047 57,998
227,462 206,658
B B R H13R 2 (M 5 @) Less: Restricted cash (note (a)) (49,787) (13,096)
B TE HATE SR (KT 5E (b)) Less: Time deposits (note (b)) (105,763) —
HekHeEFEEH Cash and cash equivalents 71,912 193,562
B & Notes:
(@) UIAREBAENERHIRSIEARTFRITIES (@) The restricted cash which is denominated in RMB represented cash deposits
FERER& (M H28) R O E B RAERHES pledged to banks as security for notes payable (note 28) and letter of
TR e guarantee for export sales.
AEEHNRERRSEEEE  EHERAREGREIR The Group’s cash and cash equivalents, time deposits and restricted cash are
SLATRH B A - denominated in the following currencies:
®12A318
As at 31 December
20175 20164
2017 2016
AR RMB 162,685 206,604
BT HK$ 9 9
Ev us$ 64,768 45
227,462 206,658
(o) FHEZVSAH @A L (b) The initial term of time deposits was over three months.
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25 ARG EE 25 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
BTG
8B &S B 153 it (B st
Number of
issued Share
shares Share capital premium Total
(A)
(shares)
R20174F K At 31 December 2017 and
201612 H31H 2016 128,000,000 128,000 311,464 439,464
26 REEF 26 RETAINED EARNINGS
$20161H1H At 1 January 2016 39,541
FAFE Profit for the year 28,608
HREZEZ2ES (H5E27(0) Transfer to safety fund (note 27(b)) (782)
2016E12A31H At 31 December 2016 67,367
20171818 At 1 January 2017 67,367
FAFE Profit for the year 33,455
#ERET2ES (M iE27(0b) Transfer to safety fund (note 27(b)) (1,094)
2R R E Dividend paid (6,400)
2017%12H31H At 31 December 2017 93,328
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BB BN B T LER)

(BRIESBFEHA

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

27

27 RESERVES

BEX0HE EERIE 5 Rl % 6 st
Capital Statutory Special

reserves reserves reserve Total
(Pt 3% () (B 7% (b))
(note (a)) (note (b))

17,637 31,656 6,170 55,463

— — 782 782

17,637 31,656 6,952 56,245

17,637 31,656 6,952 56,245

— — 1,094 1,094

17,637 31,656 8,046 57,339

20161818 At 1 January 2016
BEREZE2HES Transfer to safety fund
1#2016%£12A31H At 31 December 2016
#2017 1A18 At 1 January 2017
EREL2ES Transfer to safety fund
2017412318 At 31 December 2017

B & - Notes:
(@) R 45 P B AR B A 12 e OA AR A R R AR B AR 7 A Bt (@)

BRRA(TEHEEER]DMWAKERMAA - HE
EEERVAREHENEFBRENFEL
) (e B & 5 AR B TE ) B9 10% 4 3 I AE {7 46 7
MEREDPREEEEBEMERAG0% * ATH
BERBBEAETEME-TOERE - EATRKRA
BerARKHEEFER@E)  XAERNER
AMER EREEBETRNOEZERARAES
ERT B LN EMEAR25% °

REBRRZ2LEELEEEELBN2012FH M
METZER  BOSEERARBRAN—EL
PIERZ2ES  EEESTARNKEHME
Exze  BTARERRRDIK - REERER
ik BEREEASEREEFRERERN -

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and the Articles
of Association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC (the “PRC
Operational Entities”), the PRC Operational Entities are required to
appropriate 10% of their annual net profit, after offsetting any prior years’
losses as determined under the PRC accounting standards, to the statutory
surplus reserve fund before distributing any net profit. When the balance of
the statutory surplus reserve fund reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
PRC Operational Entities, any further transfer is at the discretion of
shareholders. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to offset prior
years’ losses, if any, and may be capitalised as registered capital, provided
that the remaining balance of the statutory surplus reserve fund after such
issue is no less than 25% of registered capital.

Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the State of Administration of Work
Safety in 2012, certain group entities are required to set aside an amount to a
safety fund at certain percentage of revenue. The fund can be used for
improvement of safety for machinery manufacturing, and are not available for
distribution to shareholders. Upon incurring safety expenditure, an equivalent
amount is transferred from safety fund to retained earnings.
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28 B RHMERIE 28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
®12A318
As at 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
e 1% (M 7T @) Notes payable (note (a)) 51,770 23,008
Z 5 & < 51 38 (B £ () Trade payables (note (b)) 29,101 12,953
HEENEERES Quality warranty deposits from
suppliers 2,400 3,260
FEE E1E A Employee benefits payable 1,887 1,618
H At JE - 7 18 Other taxes payable 1,231 336
M - BB &R E T RIE Payables for property, plant and
equipment 1,109 2,937
BEERFRZEE Provision for quality warranty
expenses 237 157
Ht Others 4,683 4,080
92,418 48,349
B = Notes:
(@) AR ARRITE BB ST R EE R E (@) The notes payable are secured by pledge of cash deposits to banks (note 24).
24) o
(b) B RNRBRNERER ST (b)  The aging analysis of the trade payables was as follows:
®12A31H
As at 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
1R Within 1 year 27,960 11,655
1224 1-2 years 130 440
2E3F 2-3 years 439 242
3EMN E Over 3 years 572 616
29,101 12,953

—=— £ FERE ANNUALREPORT2017 167



72 & B 7% 3R 3= MY 2 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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29 IR

B E2016F 12 AIH IEFEMR BEEFRA
R#¥0.057T (A% 2. 4858 A R#6,400,0007T)
B R2017F & fF (20164 : &) o

AAREFTGRZAIRZEEE2017F12 431
HIEFE®REGRARKE05T (R E
4a%H A R#6,400,0007T) @ BERER#E
M2018F6 ASHRITHREAFAE Lt
K& - FAMEE o AR WmER M R R It
B EMARR S (20165 : KRR EFR AR
¥0.057L (B B 4 8 A R #6,400,000
JL)) °

EER AR ESRT AR
A R#¥0.057T
(20164 : A R#¥0.057T)

29 DIVIDENDS

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 of
RMBO0.05 per share, amounted to a total dividend of
RMB6,400,000, has been paid in 2017 (2016:nil).

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 of
RMBO0.05 per share, amounting to a total dividend of
RMB6,400,000, has been proposed by the Board of Directors
of the Company and is subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 8
June 2018. These financial statements have not reflected this
dividend payable (2016: final dividend of RMBO0.05 per share,
amounting to a total dividend of RMB6,400,000).

®12A831H
As at 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
Proposed final dividend of
RMBO0.05 (2016: RMBO0.05) per
ordinary share 6,400 6,400
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30 ZEFBRERS 30 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
@ KBRS HAFNEESEMSIRSH (@) Reconciliations of profit before income tax to cash
HERWMT generated from operations were as follow:
HE12A3BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
B& P 4% Bt 5 F B Profit before income tax 40,655 15,860
AT RIBEFAE: Adjustments for:
— & (M sE14 % Bt 5E15) — Depreciation (note 14 and
note 15) 9,058 8,708
— 5 (5218 16) — Amortisation (notes 13 and 16) 662 588

— B U FIE B BE S O (B 5£19) — Reversal of allowance for
impairment of receivables

(note 19) (9,565) (6,218)
— GEREEERD), BE — (Reversal of allowance)/
allowance for impairment of
inventories (1,172) 4,379
— RERMBHK AN — Amortisation of unearned
financial income (1,669) —
— HERAFEFAEZNE/ — Gains on disposal of financial
& E MU e (T 5E8) assets at fair value through
profit or loss (note 8) (3,895) (3,038)
— BATEFAERNEHEEN — Unrealised fair value gain on
REBR RN FEK DS financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (1,202) (248)
—EXER — Foreign exchange difference 1,371 —
EELSSPHMMEZNE: Operating profit before
changes in working capital: 34,243 20,031
BESSEE Changes in working capital
- & — Inventories (45,512) 13,015
— FE{FRIE — Prepayments 1,477 6,832
— B Kk EAMEWFRIE — Trade and other receivables 5,791 20,101
— B K EMERNFKIE — Trade and other payables 45,897 7,284
— FEREFRIE — Advances from customers 33,194 3,298
EEmMBHE: Cash generated from
operations 75,090 70,561
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30 EEMBRE® 30 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(Continued)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from
sale of property, plant and equipment comprise:

HE12A3BLEEE
Year ended 31 December
20174 20164F
2017 2016
HEWE  BMEKZBEHFISFIE Proceeds from disposal of the
(Bff 5E14) property, plant and equipment
(Note 14) 13 1
31 g 31 COMMITMENTS
(a) BXKIE (a) Capital commitments
BEJHNERRGEMBERRBEBENER Capital expenditures contracted and not provided for in the
XN : consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

»12A31H
As at 31 December
20174 20164
2017 2016
492 216

(b) KEHERWHEE — KEEATEE® (b) Operating leases rental receivables — group company

BHAEA as lessor
BEBETABELCEHERRMHRERKE The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-
HEMFKWOT cancellable operating leases are as follows:
®12A31H
As at 31 December
20174 20164F
2017 2016
A No later than 1 year 865 2,298
B @14 i AR @5 F Later than 1 year and no later
than 5 years 9209 2,213
1,774 4,511
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32 FABARS
REEBREMLELE - RERILAE RKEF
ELTHE&ZES - BER2017F12A31H
H[F 5 A AN D R160.34% B Z I HE o

A = 20174F K 201612 318 I E/F -
NEF RS W EETEMEALS o

(@ EEEHEWHE
TEERELREES ESLhafER
o B E2017FE K 2016F12 AB1H IEFE
WEZEREMEZHINWT:

T2EHEME
— 1% #Hehitda
— @A RERRE

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is ultimately controlled by Mr. Zhang Degang, Mr.
Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua, who collectively held
60.34% direct equity interest in the Company as at 31
December 2017.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
significant transaction has been carried out between the Group
and related parties.

(@) Key management compensation

Key management includes directors, supervisors and senior
managements. The key management compensation for the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are set out as
below:

HE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20174 20164F
2017 2016
Key management compensation
— Wages, salaries and bonuses 2,355 2,426
— Welfare and pension 485 528
2,840 2,954
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33 KATIMNEEEERAHEE 33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

by ) OF THE COMPANY
AATIHNEEERBR Balance sheet of the Company
R12A318
As at 31 December
Bt 3% 20174 2016
Note 2017 2016
& ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
T b A Land use rights 29,251 30,436
NE - BERR Property, plant and equipment 88,654 04733
REME Investment properties 21,725 20,934
BVEE Intangible assets 19 62
R AR A% & Investments in subsidiaries 24,719 24719
B 5 R E A W A Trade and other receivables - 15,922
EXEMEHEE — 38 Deferred income tax assets — net 7,678 11,266
172,046 198,072
REEE Current assets
RE Inventories 85,694 48143
B HIE Prepayments 264 2274
B R E A R FIR Trade and other receivables 170,126 161,773
BRTEFARRN Financial assets at fair value through
PREE profit or loss 77,450 30,248
BERIHFE Restricted cash 49,787 10,096
EHER Time deposits 105,763 =
RekReSEER Cash and cash equivalents 54,775 169,712
543,859 422,246
HEE Total assets 715,905 620,318
Ea EQUITY
BB A Share capital 128,000 128,000
R (B Share premium 311,464 311,464
S Reserves (Fff 7% (a)) (Note(a)) 74,727 73,633
REAF Retained earnings (P 3% (a)) (Note(a)) 56,971 39,866
B Total equity 571,162 552,963
BfE LIABILITIES
REER Current liabilities
B REMERRIE Trade and other payables 91,073 42,943
B EFFAR Advances from customers 53,670 24,412
144,743 67,355
EREERE Non-current liabilities - -
BER Total liabilities 144,743 67,355
BEGREE Total equity and liabilities 715,905 620,318
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33 AABMEERBRRMEE
280
Miet(a) - F AT HEHES

#2016 1A1H At 1 January 2016
FNEE Loss for the year
BRZZ2ES Transfer to safety fund
20165 12A 318 At 31 December 2016
201751818 At 1 January 2017
FRHE Profit for the year
BREZ2ES Transfer to safety fund
Bk 5 A% B Dividend paid
#2017%12A318 At 31 December 2017

34 EEREEEMRER

(a) EEREENME
REEREEHE2017FE12A31BILEE
RE BN S A 0T

i Name

PITES Executive Directors

SRR Zhang Degang

bR EAEO) Zhang Degiang (note (i)

FHTES Non-executive Directors

=S Gao Feng

REREE Zhang Jinghua

BUFRTES Independent Non-
executive Directors

2|3 Liu Chaojian

i & B Ho Yuk Ming Hugo

=¥ Gao Fu Ping

S Supervisors

1BERE Yang Jinghua

IS Wei Yi

Z Peng Jiashan

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note (a): Reserve movement of the Company

BEXxAE  AEMHE  WHEE  REEE8

Capital Statutory Special Total
reserves reserves reserve reserve
38,065 28,616 6,170 72,851

_ _ 780 782
38,065 28,616 6,952 73,633
38,065 28,616 6,952 73,633
- — e 100
38,065 28,616 8,046 74,727

REEF
Retained
earnings

42,067
(1,419)
(782)

39,866

39,866
24,599
(1,094)
(6,400)

56,971

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

AND SUPERVISORS
(@) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every director and supervisor for the year

ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

BHRERE - EBREY

e e BEEd RE#RE EH
Pension
costs -

defined Allowances

Discretionary  contribution and benefits

Fees Salaries bonus plans in kind
- 460 38 4 37

- 450 45 41 37
100 - - - -
100 - - - -
100 - - - -
- 106 1 23 21
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34 ESRESEARER®

(@ EEREENIME @
REEREEHE2016F12A31H ILEE
R E BN S A 0T

ek Name

BITES
wRIEH
o A 3 (P EE ()

Executive Directors
Zhang Degang
Zhang Degiang (note (i)

FHITES Non-executive Directors

= Gao Feng

REFE Zhang Jinghua

BUAFRTES Independent Non-
executive Directors

2|82 Liu Chaojian

il &5 A Ho Yuk Ming Hugo

=BT Gao Fu Ping

BE Supervisors

AR Yang Jinghua

EES Wei Yi

Zmb Peng Jiashan

B &

(i) ARAHREBITRAERGREENRERL
Ao

REZE2017F12A31ALFE MEES
WRASEMSIERMAREB AR
KRR ERBERMEE MEESENW
ZYRENEEMME (20165F : ) °

(b) EFBRKER
BT S 0 A 1A B YR 3G W ERAE (] 3R AR
&8 (20165 : &) °

(c) EEHEERN
B EE TN F RS UWER Sk A B A B
B 42 A (20164 : M) o

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS (Continued)

(@) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of every director and supervisor for the year
ended 31 December 2016 is set out below:

BREKAE — EUREY
e e BEEAL  REMHKE S & F #at
Pension
costs —
defined Allowances
Discretionary contribution and benefits in
Fees Salaries bonus plans kind Total
— 460 38 37 36 571
- 450 37 37 36 560
100 — — — — 100
100 - - - - 100
100 — — — — 100
— 107 9 23 23 162
Note:

(i) The chief executive of the Company is Mr. Zhang Degiang, who is also a
director.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no directors received
emoluments from the Group as inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. No
directors waived or had agreed to waive any emoluments (2016:
Nil).

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits during the year (2016: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the year (2016: Nil).
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3 EEREERARER

d MESEETRBRE=FREHN
K1E

RELE2017F12A31BILFE - REEL

BRESEERBEMETME=FZNHRE

(20164 : &) °

() MES RREESEHNENE
BRZEESHHREEEATREA
MER FERRABXINEH

REZE2017F12A31BLFE - HENE
B IREESENMEABBERZSE
EENHEERASEANER  EEH
R EAM AR5 HE (20164 < &) ©

( EENXS FHIASHPHEX
#x

RERKFATMER - HEANRA]PIET

Y oHEERETHEBEA#ED(THRE

BRAEZR) BEARAEBABNEAR

5~ RHERA# 7 E (20165 : &) -

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS (Continued)

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group did not

pay consideration to any third parties for making available

directors’ services (2016: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there are no loans,

quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of the

directors, or controlled body corporates and connected entities
of such directors (2016: Nil).

interests

(f) Directors’ material

arrangements or contracts

in transactions,

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2016: Nil).
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December

20174 20164F 20154 20144 20134

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

ARBTR ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

@N Revenue 160,584 112,284 68,168 314,298 318,948

wERE (1) Operating profit/(loss) 38,516 14,283 (96,433) 141,862 158,347

Fisdims (E&) Income tax expense/(credit) 7,200 (12,748) (3,040) 28,438 22,469

FAFE(ER) Profit/(loss) for the year 33,455 28,608 (88,804) 111,602 130,992

FAARR TR R EG Earnings/(loss) per share
FREFN,(EH) attributable to shareholders
(AR ARBITIIR) of the Company for the year
(expressed in RMB per share)

—HEARR#EE — Basic and diluted 0.26 0.22 (0.69) 1.11 1.36
EFIx Gross profit margin 34.20% 29.33% 26.70% 48.60% 58.26%
wERE(BE) X Operating profit/(loss) margin 23.98% 12.72% -141.46% 4514% 48.08%
A, CFER) X Net profit/(loss) margin 20.83% 25.48% -130.27% 35.51% 41.07%

®12A31H

As at 31 December
20174 20164 20154 20144 20134
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ARETRT ARETT ARETRT ARETRT AREBTET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE Non-current assets 165,334 195,576 166,775 171,734 138,552
MENE E Current assets 575,013 440,435 436,966 646,986 631,254
mE A G Current liabilities 150,216 73,115 69,273 176,248 271,822
MENE EFE Net current assets 424,797 367,320 367,693 470,738 359,432
BEERRBEE Total assets less current liabilities 590,131 563,076 534,468 642,472 497,984
BREFE Net assets 590,131 563,076 534,468 642,472 497,984
@ Capital 128,000 128,000 128,000 128,000 96,000
i Reserves 57,339 56,245 55,463 56,767 40,902
B Total equity 590,131 563,076 534,468 642,472 497,984
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